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The year 2013 was marked by the death of several notable residents past and present.
The following are especially recognized for the service they gave in Town and State office.

Norris (Norrie) Hoyt died on August 4 at his home on Pattrell Road. He came to
Vermont to work as Deputy Commissioner in the Department of Taxes, then moved to
Norwich in 1971 where he opened the first law firm in town since 1791. He became legal

counsel to Governor Tom Salmon, and wrote and helped pass Vermont’s landmark Land
Gains Tax Act.

In 1974 he and Kathy, his wife of 39 years, were married in the Governor’s Office in the
Vermont State House, the only couple ever to do that.

That year he was elected to the first of five terms in the Vermont State House, represent-
ing Norwich and Strafford. In 1985, he became Commissioner of Taxes and later served as
Commissioner of Liquor Control until he retired in 1998. In Norwich, he was elected Town
Moderator, serving from 1990 to 1994.

Morgan Goodrich died on July 20 after succumbing to dementia. He was born in 1938
at his parents’ home at the corner of Main Street and Willey Hill Road. He served on the
Norwich Planning Commission from 1977 to 1985 and was elected to the Selectboard in
1985 until 2002, where he served as the chair from 1990 to 1999. With local roots for sev-
eral generations, Morgan understood the vibrancy of Norwich and sought solutions that
considered all citizens.

Morgan’s entrepreneurial strengths were evident from "bucking up" fallen elm trees on
Main Street and plowing snow for a number of residents to creating businesses to serve the
community in a continuing legacy with his sons. Morgan loved the land and, in addition to
his strong views about land use, spent a great deal of time gardening, the fruits of which sus-
tained his family.

Frank Smallwood died on October 3 at Wake Robin in Shelburne, Vermont. Frank and
Ann built the first house on the top of Willey Hill in 1962. Norwich was home until retire-
ment in 1992, when they moved to Burlington to be near their children. Frank was for 35
years a faculty member of Dartmouth’s Government Department, with special interest in
public policy and interdisciplinary programs. In addition to serving on several state boards,
Frank was elected state senator for Windsor County, including Norwich, from 1973-74.

Locally, Frank particularly enjoyed being appointed Fence Viewer in Norwich, a position
he held from 1975 to 1990, in which with two others he was called on to examine the con-
dition of disputed fence lines between adjoining properties - a Vermont tradition of long
standing that continues today.

Saturday at the Norwich Farmers Market. The market was founded in 1977, one of the first of its
kind in Vermont. It is open 9 a.m. to 1 p.m. from May till the end of October, and two Saturdays of
each month during the winter. Photo by Suzanne Wallis.

Photographs of the 2013 Norwich Fair appear throughout this Report, courtesy of Harjit Rakhra.
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Town of Norwich, Vermont and
Norwich Town School District
Warning of Annual Meeting, March 4, 2014

The legal voters of the Town of Norwich, Vermont and the Norwich Town School District
are hereby notified and warned to meet in Tracy Memorial Hall, Norwich, Vermont at 7:00
pm on Monday, March 3, 2014, to transact business not requiring a vote by Australian bal-
lot. Voting for Town Officers and for all articles on the Warning will be by Australian bal-
lot. The polls will be open Tuesday, March 4, 2014 from 7:00 am to 7:00 pm.

This meeting is called to determine if the Town will:
Article 1. Elect a Moderator of the Town and School District meeting for one year.
Article 2. Elect Town and School District Officers for terms starting in 2014.
Article 3. Hear and act on the reports of the Officers of the Town and Town School District.

Article 4. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich approve a gross spending General Town
Budget of $4,161,554 plus state and federal grants and gifts consistent with budgeted
programs for the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 20157

Article 5. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $10,360 to Advance Transit
to be used to help cover operating costs and providing matching funds for grants, such
amount being reasonably necessary for the support of providing public transportation
services to benefit Town residents?

Article 6. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $500 to the Green Mountain
RSVP & Volunteer Center of Windsor County to develop opportunities for people
age 55 and older to positively impact the quality of life in the community through vol-
unteer service, such amount being reasonably necessary for the support of programs to
benefit Town residents?

Article 7. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $2,500 to Headrest to be
used for operation of the hotline, such amount being reasonably necessary for the sup-
port of Norwich callers using the 24-hour hotline?

Article 8. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $3,093 to the Health Care
and Rehabilitation Services of Southeast Vermont in support of community services
provided to Norwich residents, such amount being reasonably necessary for the sup-
port of programs to benefit Town residents?

Article 9. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $1,500 to the Norwich
American Legion, to be used for the Legion’s Memorial Day observance, such amount
being reasonably necessary to provide a dignified event honoring those Town residents
who gave all?

Article 10. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $15,000 to the Cemetery
Commission under 18 VSA § 5361 to supplement the interest from the Perpetual Care
Trust Fund for maintenance of the Town Cemeteries’

Article 11. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $4,348 to The Child Care
Center of Norwich to be used for income sensitive scholarships to Norwich children,
such amount being reasonably necessary for the support of programs to benefit Town
residents?

Article 12. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $8,000 to the Norwich
Historical Society and Community Center to support those programs that support the
celebration of historic events, such amount being reasonably necessary for the support
of programs to benefit Town residents?

Article 13. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $3,000 to the Norwich



Lions Club to be used to underwrite the fireworks for the Norwich Fair in celebration
of the 2531d year of the Town’s Charter?

Article 14. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $250,000 to the Norwich
Public Library Association, to be used for the operating expenses of the Library?

Article 15. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $50,000 to the Norwich
Public Library Association for the Association’s Reserve Fund for Repairs and Capital
Maintenance in accordance with 22 VSA Chapter 37

Article 16. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $750 for the support of
Sustainable Energy Resource Group, such amount being reasonably necessary for the
support of programs to benefit Town residents?

Article 17. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $3,750 to SEVCA
(Southeastern Vermont Community Action) to be used for emergency needs, referral
to and assistance with accessing needed services, financial counseling and food and
nutrition education, such amount being reasonably necessary for the support of pro-
grams to benefit Town residents?

Article 18. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $4,000 to The Family Place
to be used for general program support, such amount being reasonably necessary for
the support of programs such as direct service through early intervention, child care
payment assistance, healthy baby visits, reach up, welcome baby, parent education, play-
groups and other services to benefit Norwich residents and their children?

Article 19. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $2,000 to the Upper Valley
Trails Alliance to be used for trail planning and work, such amount being reasonably
necessary for the support of programs to benefit Town residents?

Article 20. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $15,600 to the Visiting
Nurse Association & Hospice of VT and NH to help support the home health, mater-
nal and child health and hospice care provided in patients’ homes and in community
settings, such amount being reasonably necessary for the support of programs to ben-
efit Town residents?

Article 21. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $5,300 to the White River
Council on Aging to be used for home delivered meals, transport and social services,
such amount being reasonably necessary for the support of programs to benefit senior
citizen Town residents?

Article 22. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $1,000 to Windsor County
Partners to be used for mentoring youth, such amount being reasonably necessary for
the support of programs to benefit Town youth?

Article 23. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $2,500 to WISE (Women's
Information Service) to be used to support WISE’s crisis intervention and support
services and prevention education, such amount being reasonably necessary for the
support of programs to benefit Town residents?

Article 24. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $3,000 to Youth-In-Action
to be used for those operating expenses that are reasonably necessary for the support
of programs to benefit Norwich residents?

Article 25. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich require that taxes be paid in U.S. funds
in two installments. The first installment will be due and accepted at the Town of
Norwich Finance Office on or before 4:30 pm August 15, 2014 and the balance will
be due at the same location on or before 4:30 pm February 13, 2015. An official
United States Post Office postmark/cancellation (not a postage machine date) will



determine the payment date for all mailed payments. Interest on overdue taxes will be
charged at 1% per month for the first three months and 1%2% per month thereafter.
All delinquent taxes will be subject to an 8% collection fee in accordance with
Vermont Statutes after February 13, 2015. All taxes, interest and collection fees will be
paid into the Town Treasury?

Article 26. Transact any other business that may legally come before the annual Norwich
Town Meeting.

Article 27. Shall the voters of the Norwich Town School District authorize and direct the
School Directors to deed without warranties for $1.00 (one dollar) to the Town of
Norwich all right, title and interest which the School District has in and to the old
Beaver Meadow Schoolhouse and the land that it sits on located on the easterly side of
Beaver Meadow Road?

Article 28. Shall the voters of the Norwich Town School District authorize and direct the
School Directors to deed without warranties for $1.00 (one dollar) to the Town of
Norwich all right, title and interest which the School District has in and to the old
Root Schoolhouse and the land that it sits on located on the northerly side of Union
Village Road?

Article 29. Shall the voters of the Norwich Town School District determine and fix the
salaries of the School Board members in the sum of $500 each per year in accordance
with the provisions of 16 VSA § 562(5)?

Article 30. Shall the voters of the Norwich Town School District appropriate $5,357,764,
necessary for the support of its school for the year beginning July 1, 2014 and ending
June 30, 20157

Article 31. Transact any other business that may legally come before the annual meeting of
the Norwich Town School Board.

Norwich Selectboard Norwich School Board
Christopher Ashley Carey Callaghan
Edwin Childs Thomas Candon
Linda Cook Anne Day
Stephen Flanders Neil Odell
Keith Moran Lauren Morando Rhim



Voter Information

Registration: To be eligible to vote in this election, people must register to vote and applica-
tions to the checklist must be received by the Town Clerk by 4:30 pm on Wednesday,
February 26, 2014.

Absentee Ballots: All requests for absentee voter ballots must be made prior to 4:30 pm on
Monday, March 3, 2014. There are three ways you may vote by absentee ballot:

1. Voters may vote in person in the Town Clerk’s Office. 17 VSA § 2537.

2. Ballots may be delivered by teams of Justices of the Peace to voters who are absent due
to illness or physical disability. The Town Clerk must receive notice no later than three

days in advance. 17 VSA § 2538.

3. Ballots may be mailed to absent voters if a valid application has been filed with the
Town Clerk. 17 VSA § 2539.

Curbside Voting: Election Officials are permitted "to carry a ballot to a handicapped or eld-
erly person in order to permit that person to mark his ballot while in a motor vehicle

adjacent to the polling place." 17 VSA § 2502(b).

Tracy Hall is handicapped accessible. Any person needing additional assistance should
contact the Town Clerk at least four days before Town Meeting.




Candidates for Office - March 4, 2014

For MODERATOR

For one year

Vote for not more than ONE
e THAYER, WARREN

For TOWN CLERK

For three years

Vote for not more than ONE
¢ MUNDAY, BONNIE ]J.

For TREASURER
For three years
Vote for not more than ONE
e LINDBERG, CHERYL A.

For Dresden-Norwich
SCHOOL DIRECTOR
For three years
Vote for not more than ONE
¢ MACKALL, D. JAMES

For Dresden-Norwich
SCHOOL DIRECTOR
For three years
Vote for not more than ONE
¢ CANDON, TOM

For Norwich SCHOOL DIRECTOR
For two years
Vote for not more than ONE

e CAMPFIELD, JUSTIN

For LISTER

For three years
Vote for not more than ONE
e BLUM, LIZ
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For SELECTMAN

For three years

Vote for not more than ONE
e CHILDS, ED
¢ GOULET, DAN

For SELECTMAN

For two years

Vote for not more than ONE
¢ FLANDERS, STEPHEN

For GRAND JUROR

For one year
Vote for not more than ONE

For AGENT TO PROSECUTE &
DEFEND SUITS

For one year

Vote for not more than ONE

For CEMETERY COMMISSIONER
For five years
Vote for not more than ONE

¢ SOFRONAS, DEMO

For TRUSTEE OF PUBLIC FUNDS

For three years
Vote for not more than ONE

For TRUSTEE OF PUBLIC FUNDS
For an unexpired two-year term
Vote for not more than ONE
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Town of Norwich
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Norwich Town Officers & Committees for 2013

Elected Officials Trustees of Public Funds

Selectboard Deborah Hall ............... 2014
EdChilds .................. 2014 Douglas Rexford ............. 2014
Steve Flanders, Chair ......... 2014 Cheryl Lindberg ............. 2016
Christopher Ashley .. ......... 2015
Keith Moran ................ 2015 . o
Linda Cook, Vice-Chair ....... 2016 Appointed Officials

Town Manager

Town Clerk (serves also as Collector of Delinquent Taxes
Bonnie Munday ““““““““ 2014 and Eme'fgency Managemen[ DiTECtOT)
Judy Trussell, Assistant Neil Fulton

Nancy Kramer, Assistant
Town Treasurer

Cheryl Lindberg ............. 2014 Assessor
Debby Hall, Assistant Bill Krajeski
Jonathan Bynum, Clerk
Agent to Prosecute & Defend Suits
Frank Olmstead ............. 2014 Bugbee Senior Center Representatives
Martha Drake, Paula Harris
Cemetery Commission

Demo Sofronas . ............. 2014 Conservation Commission
Robert Parker ............... 2015 Stephen Gaughan ............ 2014
Jay Van Arman ............ .. 2016 Peter Silberfarb .............. 2014
Ed Janeway ................. 2017 Daniel Goulet ............... 2015
Fred Smith, Jr., Chair ......... 2018 Martha Graber, Chair......... 2015
David Hubbard .............. 2016
Grand Juror William Pierce . .............. 2016
David Hobson . .............. 2017
Justices of the Peace CraigLayne ................. 2017
Brooke Adler . ............... 2015 Norman Miller .............. 2017
Joyce Childs ................ 2015
Ernie Ciccotelli .............. 2015 Development Review Board
Nancy Dean ................ 2015 Ernie Ciccotelli .............. 2014
Paul “Doc” Donohue ......... 2015 Arline Rotman .............. 2014
Mary Fowler ................ 2015 Folger Tuggle .. .............. 2014
LindaGray ................. 2015 Nancy Dean ................ 2015
Corlan Johnson ............. 2015 John Lawe, Chair ............ 2015
Donald Kreis ................ 2015 ]ohn Carroll ................ 2016
Mark Lindberg .............. 2015 Stanley Teeter ............... 2016
Arline Rotman .............. 2015 Don McCabe, Alternate . ... ... 2015
Fred Smith, Jr. .............. 2015
Emergency Management
Listers Stephen Leinoff, Deputy Director
Liz Blum, Chair ............. 2014 Jennie Hubbard, Coordinator
Ernie Ciccotelli .............. 2015
Cheryl Lindberg ............. 2016 Energy Committee
Alan Berolzheimer, Chair
Moderator Linda Gray
Warren Thayer .............. 2014 Jamie Hess
Doug Iverson
Norwich School Board Jonathan Teller-Elsberg
Tom Candon ................ 2014
AnneDay .................. 2014 Fence Viewer
Lauren Morando Rhim ... ... .. 2014 Watt Alexander
Neil Odell, Chair ............ 2015 Liz Russell
Carey Callaghan ............. 2016
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Finance Committee

Mary Fowler ................ 2014
Cheryl Lindberg, Chair ....... 2016
Finance Director
Roberta Robinson
Jonathan Bynum, Assistant
Fire Chief
Stephen Leinoff
Fire Warden
Linda Cook
Stephen Leinoff, Deputy
GUV Solid Waste Man. District
Brion McMullan . ............ 2015
Neil Fulton, Alternate . . ....... 2015
Health Officer
John Lawe, MD . ............. 2015
Bonnie Munday, Deputy . ... ... 2016
Historic Preservation Commission
Peter Brink ................. 2014
Nancy Hoggson, Chair ........ 2014
Bill Aldrich ................. 2015
Nancy Osgood . ............. 2015
Stuart White . ............... 2015
Cheryl Herrmann ............ 2016
Anne Silberfartb .. ............ 2016

Milton Frye Nature Area Committee
Matt Buck
George Clark
Kate Emlin
Becky French
Bill Hammond
Phyllis Katz
Lindsay Putnam
Sharon Racusin

Beth Ryan
Warren Thayer, Chair
Stan Williams

Planning Commission
Richard Stucker .............. 2014
Tom Gray, Chair ............. 2015
Daniel Johnson . ............. 2015
Susan Brink .. ............... 2016
Jeff Goodrich ............... 2016
William Flynn ............... 2017
Nancy LaRowe . .. ............ 2017

I-3

Planning Director
Phil Dechert

Pam Mullen, Assistant

Police Chief
Douglas Robinson

Public Works Director
Andy Hodgdon

Recreation Council
Laura Duncan ............... 2014
Everett Logan ............... 2014
BillMiles ................... 2014
Kristin Brown/Stuart Close . . ..2015
ChrisClapp . ..vvvvvvnenn... 2015
Karin Dwyer ................ 2015
Kris Strohbehn, President .. ... 2015
Benjamin Forbush ........... 2016

Reese Madden ............... 2016
Danielle Taylor

Recreation Director
Jill Kearney Niles

Senior Action Council
Dorothy Cloud
Martha Drake, Chair

Paula Harris, Secretary

Surveyor of Wood and Lumber

David Hubbard

Town Service Officer

Linda Cook

Tree Warden
Thad Goodwin

Two Rivers-Ottauquechee RC Rep.
Jeff Goodrich
Tom Gray, Alternate

Upper Valley River Subcommittee CRJC
Melissa Horwitz

Watershed Land Management Council

Sandra Haskell .............. 2014
Ellen Gnaedinger ............ 2015
David Hubbard, Chair ........ 2016



Minutes Of The Annual Meeting, March 5, 2013
Town of Norwich, Vermont and
Norwich Town School District

The meeting was called to order at 7:05 pm by Moderator Warren Thayer. Thayer went
over the rules of procedure and asked for a motion to allow two or three minutes for speak-
ers. A voice vote was taken to allow for three-minute discussion.

This meeting is called to determine if the Town will:
Article 1. Elect a Moderator of the Town and School District meeting for one year.
Atrticle 2. Elect Town and School District Officers for terms starting in 2013.
Article 3. Hear and act on the reports of the Officers of the Town and Town School District.

Neil Odell spoke on behalf of the School Board apologizing for the lateness of the
School Report. This year they tried to make it less cluttered and did not get the infor-
mation to the public in a timely manner.

Article 4. Authorize the Board of School Directors to borrow money by issuance of bonds or notes not
in excess of anticipated revenues for the next fiscal year in accordance with the provisions of 16

VSA § 562(9).

Tom Candon spoke to this article explaining that this is done every year. This allows
the school to borrow funds to cover expenses in case there is a delay in revenues. (Yes,

830; No, 166)

Atrticle 5. The Board of School Directors proposes to incur indebtedness for the purpose of making
improvements to the Marion W. Cross School at an aggregate estimated cost of $450,000. Due
to a legislative moratorium, no state school construction aid will be available as a partial fund-
ing source for these improvements. The District is responsible for all costs incurred with any bor-
rowing done in anticipation of receipt of school construction aid.

Shall general obligation bonds of the Norwich Town School District in an amount not
to exceed Four Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($450,000) be issued for the purpose
of financing the cost of making repairs, renovations and upgrades to the Marion W.
Cross School Building, namely, HVAC and energy recovery unit replacements, and
roof section replacement, the estimated cost of such improvements being Four

Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($450,000)?

At the beginning of the budget season this year the Board went to the administration
and asked them to project what the anticipated cost would be for the next 10 years for
building maintenance items. After looking at the list, they noticed that there were sev-
eral things that needed to be done and putting it together it added up to quite a bit of
money. They looked at the benefit of doing it sooner rather than later. It was at this
point that the Board decided to look into a bond to pay for these items. One of the
things that they are looking at is to replace the roof ventilation unit; another is to
replace classroom unit ventilators, which are also heating units. Another repair item is
the roof over the gym: it is starting to show its age and it needs to be replaced. (Yes,

710; No, 297)

Article 6. In the event the proposition of incurring bonded indebtedness for school building improve-
ments shall be disapproved at the March 5, 2013 district meeting, shall the sum of $85,000 be
appropriated for building repairs during the 2013-2014 school year?

Neil Odell spoke to this article saying that if the Bond vote were to fail, this would
bring money into the budget to make some of the repairs needed. (Yes, 849; No, 161)
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Article 7. Shall the voters of the Norwich Town School District appropriate $25,000, to be deposit-
ed in the District’s Reserve Fund for Repairs and Capital Maintenance?

This has been on the warning in past years to set aside money for reserve funds. The

current balance of the capital funds is at $95,000. (Yes, 807; No, 201)

Article 8. Shall the voters of the Norwich Town School District determine and fix the salaries of the
School Board members in the sum of $500 each per year in accordance with the provisions of 16

VSA § 562(5)?

This article has been on the ballot every year except the one year when the economy

was poor. (Yes, 886; No, 122)

Article 9. Shall the voters of the Norwich Town School District appropriate $5,138,548, necessary
for the support of its school for the year beginning July 1, 2013 and ending June 30, 2014?

Carey Callaghan spoke to this article saying that at this point the tax rate will be up %2
a percent without the Dresden contract and 1% percent if the Dresden contract pass-
es. Dresden is voted as a separate ballot.

Special Education is up .0285 with the state paying 0.025. The Homestead rate has increased
from 1.7530 to 1.7613 while the non-residential rate has dropped from 1.48 to 1.43.

Enrollment is at 311, which may drop to 304. The biggest drop is in the Kindergarten.
Teachers will be reduced from 19 to 18. A two-year contract, 2.25 percent increase in
salaries, includes the base and step, an increase in co-pay for insurance from 14 to 15
and 16 percent over the two-year period. Professional leave days will be reduced to four
days. Support Staff has organized and gained union status. It is possible that they will
be adding French at the third grade level.

The total aggregate expense budget is $5,163,548 an increase of 5.3 percent or
$261,000. Revenue expense is up 6.6 percent or $81,000.

Special Education is up $172,000, the SAU assessment is up .5 percent, Building
Improvements are down $52,000 in hope of the passing of the bond. The transfer to
the building is up $25,000. Most of the Special Education is offset by $124,000 and a

$17,000 reimbursement from the state.

The per pupil cost is $11,523. Out of 212 schools the Marion Cross School ranks 79th.
(Yes, 739; No, 273)

Article 10. Transact any other business that may legally come before the annual meeting of the
Norwich Town School Board.

State Representative Margaret Cheney explained that the base rate had to be raised due
to individual school budgets around the state that all came in with a 5 percent increase
in spending. Irv Thomae reminded everyone to look at the possibility of income sen-
sitivity.

Margaret Cheney said that we had received two grants, one from the Vermont Art
Council for $22,000 to the Beaver Meadow School House and a Facility Grant to the
Norwich Congregation Church to preserve the steeple, which houses one of the six

Paul Revere Bells.

There was a sixty seven million dollar state budget shortfall this year even though they
cut 800 jobs and three million dollars from the budget. We still need to raise trans-
portation revenues. We had used gas tax to fund transportation and, with the use of
more economical cars, the gas tax has gone down. Cheney noted that we still are using
FEMA funds from Irene and that we ran out of crisis fuel last week. There are some
controversial issues at the State House, which are Universal Health Care, Gun Safety
legislation, label of genetically modified foods, and voting on an End of Life Bill. One
good thing is that we continue to have a low unemployment rate.
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Margaret sits on the Natural Resources and Energy Committees and they continue to
look at thermal efficiency.

Jim Masland, who sits on the Ways and Means Committee, said that this is the 7th
year we have faced revenues below what was projected. Revenues come from fees,
licenses, environmental permits, and professional licensing. We have to find revenues
somewhere. He reminded us to fill out our Doyle Poll Surveys and looks forward to
working with us this year.

Atrticle 11. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich approve a gross spending General Town Budget
of $4,001,463 plus state and federal grants and gifts consistent with budgeted programs for the
period July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014?

Town Manager Neil Fulton started by thanking the Women’s Club for the grant to
update our sound system.

Fulton noted that the expense budget was down $90,900 or 22.5 percent from last
year. He noted that the Selectboard worked very hard this year to reduce the budget
and maintain the current level of services. The other monetary articles in the budget
have remained relatively flat. One item is to increase the Assistant Town Clerk from
12 hours a week to a full-time employee with benefits. This will be voted on in the next
article. We are reducing the end of the year cost shift from one year to the next.

We will begin addressing our long-term needs: Upgrading our radio communications;
Town-owned sidewalks, currently the sidewalks are owned by the Fire District with the
Town doing the sanding and salting of the sidewalks; extending benefits to part-time
employees; developing a reserve fund to replace the standby power for the Police, Fire,
and Public Works Departments; funding paving using the 2006 report which Andy
Hodgdon had done to current costs; salary wage adjustment to achieve internal and
external equity; developing a grade and step program for the non-bargaining employ-
ees; and developing a vehicle acquisition and replacement program according to con-
dition and hours instead of by age. Currently we are using cruisers from the Windsor
County Sheriff and the Town of Hartford to help get us through the time until we can
replace our cruisers that were lost in a fire.

We have changed the health care plan to reduce our health care insurance costs. Next
year we will be required to participate in the Vermont Health Care exchange using
Vermont Health Connect and at this point in time we do not know what the costs will
be. We have included an 11 percent increase which will cover the last six months of
this year and hopefully the first six months of next year.

The question is why the tax rate is going up when we are about $90,000 less than last
year. One of the reasons is Tropical Storm Irene. We incurred about 1.3 million dol-
lars in damages to our roads. We have spent over $600,000 and have been reimbursed
for $511,000 to date and still more to come in. We took a significant amount of money
from our fund balance to help compensate for Irene. If we were able to take the same
amount this year the tax rate would be lower than last year. Another reason is that
there were five litigation cases relating to assessed value. We were able to settle these
cases without going to trial. The settlements were an unplanned expense to the Town.
We are in the process of rebuilding our fund balance.

Projects underway are: the safe routes to school, which will extend the sidewalk from
Tracy Hall to Carpenter Street, that is 100 percent funded; and a Facility Study of the
Fire, Police and Public Works buildings. This study is a four-part process of which the
first two steps are completed. It will point out regulatory and building deficiencies.
There will be a number of public forums to go over the results. A study of the Listers
office recommended that we hire an Assessor for this office. We are completing a reap-
praisal which will give us new values for the April 1, 2013 Grand List. This year our

1-6



common level of appraisal came in at 99.73 percent. We have received a grant for
$23,000 to look into a shared-use path to go from Norwich Village to Hartford.

The communications upgrade to narrow band: This discussion began in 1991. In the
year 2000 we started replacing mobiles, portables, and pagers that would accept the
change to narrow band. We were able to get grants to help offset the cost of making
these changes. One of the changes we cannot control is in the base level. Fire is dis-
patched from Hanover Dispatch whose tower is on Hayes Hill and the Police are dis-
patched from Hartford using a tower on Hurricane Hill. The new system will mitigate
some of the problem areas in Town where there is no coverage. The cost for the new
system if we go with VTEL would be around $120,000, if we do not go through VTEL
the cost will be around $425,000, about a $305,000 increase over VTEL.

Norwich Pool: Dubois and King have been hired to work on this. The estimated cost
is $567,284. The schematic design is almost completed and we are working with the
Agency of Natural Resources to respond to their concerns.

Cheryl Lindberg spoke on behalf of the Finance Committee saying that in a 4 - 0 vote
the Finance Committee voted to not support the Town budget this year. Also, they are
in search of more members. There are at least three positions open.

Christopher Ashley discussed the wage increase of $47,000 in a three to four million
dollar budget, which is a lot of money. You could take the Condrey & Associates plan
and say the towns (Hartford, Lebanon, and Hanover) that were used as comparables
were not in fact good comparisons. In January, when the budget was being worked on,
the Board was asked to reduce the budget by $50,000, which they did and brought the
tax rate down to where it is today. Based on other salaries in the area Ashley feels that
we owe the employees who are receiving the increases a legitimate salary based on what
they do.

Linda Cook agrees that there are a lot of professional people in this Town. We did have
a step and grade system that had been done away with for non-bargaining employees.
The step and grade only continued with the bargaining unit. Cook feels the inequity
is not as bad as it seems. She does not believe that a 26 percent increase is accurate,
that we need to find another way of getting equity, and to not do it all at once. We are
looking at a lot of other projects and our tax rate will not be going down. She does not
support this budget.

Mary Sachsse asked why we are doing a reappraisal now. Fulton responded that the
reappraisal is due to the litigation settlement agreements.

Tom Gray spoke regarding the increase in the Planning Director’s salary and is very
impressed with the depth of knowledge needed for that position. Also, he noted the
great pains Phil Dechert takes to educate himself. Lizann Peyton spoke seconding
Tom’s comments and added that we expect a lot from the Town’s employees.

Keith Moran said he is not in support of this budget. He said he has problems with
the actual Condrey study and questions its validity. He feels that if it had been done
in a more rational way it would not have been so hard to digest. He does recognize that
$57,000 for these long-term employees is not irrational. He has concerns about one
employee who works a total of 40 hours a week in three different positions for the
Town but does not receive any benefits. Another item that is important to him is
record restorations.

Ed Childs supports this year’s budget and urges people to support it.

Irv Thomae has heard some good reasons to vote for this budget and good reasons not
to. He said that the budget discussion is very difficult to follow and suggested a sum-
mary page in the Town Report that can be understandable and simplified.
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Margo Dosher made a motion to move Article 34 to discuss in conjunction with
Article 11. Motion was seconded. Irv Thomae moved to amend the above motion to
discuss Articles 12 and 13 and then Article 34. Motion was seconded by Demo
Sofronas, motion passed on a voice vote. (Yes, 551; No, 450)

Article 12. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich increase the gross spending General Town Budget
for FY13, July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013, by $23,831 in order to increase the hours of the
Assistant Town Clerk to 40 hours per week starting January 1, 2013?

No Discussion. (Yes, 723; No, 282)

Article 13. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich increase the gross spending General Town Budget
for FY14, July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014, by $27,619 in order to increase the hours for the
Assistant Town Clerk from 20 hours to 40 hours per week?

Irv Thomae and Nancy Hoggson asked why the Board decided to separate this article.
Chipper Ashley spoke saying that this was a compromise made to take money out of
the Selectboard budget and put in other places. This brings down their budget and
clarifies that the Town wants to increase the level of employment in the Town Clerk’s
office. Steve Flanders also noted that the Town Clerk is an elected position. (Yes, 686;
No, 304)

Atrticle 34. Shall general obligation bonds or notes of the Town of Norwich in an amount not to exceed
Two Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($275,000), subject to reduction from available
state and federal grantsin-aid and other financial assistance, be issued for the purpose of financ-
ing the construction of a radio communications system including a communications tower on
terms acceptable to the Selectboard?

Alison May urges people to vote no on this article. She understands that this article is
an expression by the voters to the Selectboard that it would be okay for the Selectboard
to issue a bond. This does not give the Selectboard the authority to issue a bond. The
amount in this request is not enough to construct a tower. It appears that at a mini-

mum it will cost $475,000.

Norman Miller feels that we should vote for the bond and the ownership of the Tower
should stay with the Town.

Steve Flanders explained that if you vote yes it does give the Town authority to raise
sufficient funds for a communication system, and to vote no would be to have VTEL
construct the tower. We are risking the safety of our friends and neighbors and have
the ability to achieve 95 percent coverage of the Town.

Watt Alexander spoke saying the Selectboard has worked very hard with the Town
Manager and it made sense at one point. He is convinced that we can do this ourselves
and meet the timelines. It is our duty to try for apples to apples. Christopher Ashley
will be voting yes on this article. He feels that VTEL does not have our interest at heart.
VTEL has had up to two years to complete the contract and has not yet submitted any-
thing to the Public Service Board, nor answered a number of questions in the contract.
The bond language is written by a Bond Attorney. Bob Gere pointed out that if we vote
no, refusing the alternative to build the tower ourselves, then VTEL has us over a bar-
rel again and there is zero guarantee that VTEL will perform. (Yes, 689; No, 341)

Article 14. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $10,360 to Advance Transit to be
used to help cover operating costs and providing matching funds for grants, such amount being
reasonably necessary for the support of providing public transportation services to benefit Town
residents?

Van Chesnut spoke to this article saying there is a two percent increase over last year.
Ridership continues to increase. (Yes, 920; No, 102)
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Atrticle 15. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $500 to the Green Mountain RSVP
& Volunteer Center of Windsor County to develop opportunities for people age 55 and older to
positively impact the quality of life in the community through volunteer service, such amount
being reasonably necessary for the support of programs to benefit Town residents?

No Discussion. (Yes, 758; No, 237)
Atrticle 16. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $2,500 to Headrest to be used for

operation of the hotline, such amount being reasonably necessary for the support of Norwich
callers using the 24-hour hotline?

No Discussion. (Yes, 796; No, 208)
Article 17. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $3,093 to the Health Care and

Rehabilitation Services of Southeast Vermont in support of community services provided to
Norwich, such amount being reasonably necessary for the support of programs to benefit Town
residents?

Ed Piper spoke thanking us for our past support. This is a walk-in clinic which helps
families, children, and the First Start Program. They also help people with drug and
alcohol abuse problems navigate their way through the system. They provide access five

days a week. (Yes, 806; No, 192)
Article 18. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $1,500 to the Norwich American

Legion, to be used for the Legion’s Memorial Day observance, such amount being reasonably nec-
essary to provide a dignified event honoring those Town residents who gave all?

No Discussion. (Yes, 781; No, 215)

Article 19. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $15,000 to the Cemetery
Commission under 18 VSA § 5361 to supplement the interest from the Perpetual Care Trust
Fund for maintenance of the Town Cemeteries.

No Discussion. (Yes, 804; No, 194)
Article 20. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $4,348 to The Child Care Center

of Norwich to be used for income sensitive scholarships to Norwich children, such amount being
reasonably necessary for the support of programs to benefit Town residents?

No Discussion. (Yes, 810; No, 211)
Article 21. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $8,000 to the Norwich Historical

Society and Community Center to assist with general operations, such amount being reasonably
necessary for the support of programs to benefit Town residents?

Nancy Hoggson reported that there were 2700 people who came through the Historical
Society. They have obtained a grant to help replace windows and another grant to plan
for their collections. They are currently applying for more grants. This is the ten-year
anniversary of the purchase of their building. They worked with the Historic Preservation
Committee on two projects, Root District and Beaver Meadow School Houses. Both
projects were successful as was the walking tour. Judy Brown spoke saying the Historical
Society has been active with the Cross School. She would like to let people know that the
Antique Show will be held September 7, 2013. Norwich, Vermont: A History is available
for purchase throughout the Town. (Yes, 708; No, 294)

Atrticle 22. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $3,000 to the Norwich Lions Club
to be used to underwrite the fireworks for the Norwich Fair, such amount being reasonably nec-
essary for the support of programs to benefit Town residents?

Henry Scheier spoke to this article saying that this year the Fair did net a little more
than in past years. They were able to fund projects at the Marion Cross School as well

as helping a needy family in Town. They also help in other ways with the money they
raise from the Fair. (Yes, 607; No, 379)
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Atrticle 23. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $200,000 to the Norwich Public
Library Association, to be used for the operating expenses of the Library?

Lucinda Walker, Librarian, thanked the Town for their past support. She reported that
the Community Room had been used 517 times this past year. Circulation remains
steady and programs have increased. There were 2300 hours given this year by volun-
teer workers and the Library thanks the Friends of the Library.

Lisa Christie, Board Chair thanked the Librarians and the Town. With the increase in
funds they will be able to open the Library six days per week. (Yes, 910; No, 116)
Atrticle 24. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $750 for the support of Sustainable
Energy Resource Group, such amount being reasonably necessary for the support of programs to

benefit Town residents?

Linda Gray spoke to this article saying that SERG has been around for approximately
11 years now. This is the second year they have sought our support. This is a small
amount of money to help support them. (Yes, 736; No, 269)

Article 25. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $3,750 to SEVCA (Southeastern
Vermont Community Action) to be used for emergency needs, referral to and assistance with
accessing needed services, financial counseling and food and nutrition education, such amount
being reasonably necessary for the support of programs to benefit Town residents?

No Discussion. (Yes, 775; No, 228)
Article 26. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $4,000 to The Family Place to be

used for general program support, such amount being reasonably necessary for the support of pro-
grams such as direct service through early intervention, child care payment assistance, healthy
baby wvisits, reach up, welcome baby, parent education, playgroups and other services to benefit
Norwich residents and their children?

Liz Adams spoke to this article thanking the Town for their past support. This is a
child/parent center and they support all parents. (Yes, 827; No, 189)

Atrticle 27. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $2,000 to the Upper Valley Trails
Alliance to be used for trail planning and work, such amount being reasonably necessary for the
support of programs to benefit Town residents?

No Discussion. (Yes, 748; No, 249)

Article 28. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $15,600 to the Visiting Nurse
Association & Hospice of VT and NH to help support the home health, maternal and child
health and hospice care provided in patients’ homes and in community settings, such amount
being reasonably necessary for the support of programs to benefit Town residents?

Nan Carroll spoke thanking the Selectboard for their service and the Town. This year
they are asking for level funding. (Yes, 874; No, 145)

Article 29. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $5,300 to the White River Council
on Aging to be used for home delivered meals, transport and social services, such amount being
reasonably necessary for the support of programs to benefit senior citizen Town residents?

No Discussion. (Yes, 878; No, 133)

Atrticle 30. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $1,000 to Windsor County Partners
to be used for mentoring youth, such amount being reasonably necessary for the support of pro-
grams to benefit Town youth?

Nancy Dean spoke to this article. The funding request is the same as last year. This is
a program that matches children to a mentoring adult. (Yes, 764; No, 232)
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Article 31. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $2,500 to WISE (Women’s Information
Service) to be used to support WISE’s crisis intervention and support services and prevention educa-
tion, such amount being reasonably necessary for the support of programs to benefit Town residents?

No Discussion. (Yes, 800; No, 204)
Atrticle 32. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich appropriate $3,000 to Youth-In-Action to be used

for operating expenses, such amount being reasonably necessary for the support of programs to
benefit Town residents?

No Discussion. (Yes, 671; No, 311)

Atrticle 33. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich require that taxes be paid in U.S. funds in two
installments. The first installment will be due and accepted at the Town of Norwich Finance
Office on or before 4:30 pm August 16, 2013 and the balance will be due at the same location
on or before 4:30 pm February 14, 2014. An official United States Post Office postmark/can-
cellation (not a postage machine date) will determine the payment date for all mailed payments.
Interest on overdue taxes will be charged at 1% per month for the first three months and 1Y%
per month thereafter. All delinquent taxes will be subject to an 8% collection fee in accordance
with Vermont Statutes after February 14, 2014. All taxes, interest and collection fees will be paid
into the Town Treasury?

No Discussion. (Yes, 947; No, 58)

Atrticle 35. Shall the voters of the Town of Norwich support the Vermont Home Energy Challenge, a
voluntary effort to help residents lower their energy bills and improve home comfort through ener-
&y efficiency, by encouraging residents to undertake energy efficiency improvements in their homes
and reduce energy use, accepting the goal of weatherizing 3% of the homes in our community in
2013, and thereby supporting Vermont in reaching its statewide goal of 25% energy savings in
80,000 homes by the year 2020?

Jonathan Teller-Elsberg spoke to this article explaining that the Norwich Energy
Committee would like the Town to support the Vermont Home Energy Fund
Challenge. This will involve no money but a pledge to save energy. (Yes, 831; No, 174)

Atrticle 36. Will voters of the Town of Norwich, VT instruct their federal and state legislatures to:
1. Ban assault weapons and high-capacity ammunition magazines;
2. Require a criminal background check for every gun sold in America;

3. Make gun trafficking a federal crime, with real penalties for “straw purchasers” (those who
arm criminals)?

Don McCabe spoke to this saying this is the first time it has appeared since the
Newtown shooting. This is to send a message to Montpelier and forward. He feels now
is the time to discuss common sense gun control. (Yes, 898; No, 132)

Atrticle 37. Shall the Town of Norwich wvote to petition, alone or with the other communities, the pas-
sage of the following amendment to the Constitution of the State of Vermont: “Chapter 1, Article
22 (Rights of Nature). That the natural environment of Vermont, including its forests, natural
areas, surface and ground waters, and fish and wildlife populations, has certain natural, inher
ent and unalienable rights to clean water and air, to health uncompromised by anthropogenic
substances damaging to the systems of life and to flourishing, connected habitats which support
the well-being of the flora and fauna of Vermont. Every person in this state shall have recourse
to the laws for all violations of this article, with damages recurring in full to the injured environ-
mental system to ensure its prompt restoration”?

Courtney Dobyns spoke to this article saying that this would start conversations for the
rights of nature which began in Ecuador in 2010 and have gone global. This would cre-
ate a balance of nature and web of life which has been disrupted and will have a legal
basis to support our planet. (Yes, 689; No, 284)
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Article 38. Transact any other business that may legally come before the annual Norwich Town

Meeting.

Sue Pitiger spoke to this inviting people to come to the Spring Gala and honor the
Fraser Family as Citizens of the Year.

Meeting adjourned at 10:47 pm.

Respectfully submitted, Bonnie J. Munday, Norwich Town Clerk

Ballot Results
Articles 1 & 2, March 5, 2013

Moderator (1 year) ............c.coviin.... Warren Thayer .......... 850
Dresden-Norwich School Director (3 years) .. ... Carey Callaghan ... ... ... 845
Dresden-Norwich School Director

(1 year unexpired term) .................... Tom Candon ........... 837
Lister (3years) .. ..ovvveeieeieeaennnn Cheryl A. Lindberg ...... 784
Selectman (3years) ..........viiiiniiin... Linda Cook ............ 840
Selectman (2 years) ........ooveireinin.... Christopher Ashley . ... ... 813
Cemetery Commissioner (5 years) ............ Fred Smith, Jr. .......... 830
Trustee of Public Funds (3 years) ............. Cheryl Lindberg .. ........ 46

[-12



Town and School Homestead Tax Rates
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Town of Norwich and Norwich School District Summary

LOCAL GROSS EXPENDITURES SUMMARY

FY13 FY14 FY15 FY15/FY14

Actual Budget Projected® % Change
Town withour Articles $ 4,103,989 % 4,029,082 $ 4,161,554 3.209%
Articles $ 310,001 % 286,201 % 386,201 34.94%
Local Agreement $ 37,360 $ 35,268 % 34,724 -1.54%
Total Town $ 4,451,350 $ 4,350,551 $ 4,582,479 5.33%
Marion Cross School 5,139,749 5,163,548 5,357,764 3.76%
Dresden Assessment 6,398,727 6,547,177 6,763,887 3.31%
Total School 11,538,476 11,710,725 12,121,651 3.51%
Total Expenditures $ 20,441,175 % 20,411,827 $ 21,286,608 4.29%

TOTAL TAX RATE (Per $100 of Assessed Value)

FY13 FYl4 FY15 FY15/FY14
Actual Actual Projected* % Change
Town Rate without Articles $ 0.4004 % 0.4413 % 0.4591 4.03%
Town Rate for Articles 0.0542 0.0454 0.0556 22.47%
Local Agreement Rate 0.0053 0.0051 % 0.0050 -1.96%
Total Town Rate 0.4689 0.4918 0.5197 5.67%
Windsor County** 0.0062 0.0089 43.55%
School Homestead*** 1.7530 1.7356 1.8403 6.03%
School Non-residential*** 1.4791 1.4821 1.5202 2.57%
Total Tax Rate
Homestead $ 2.2219 § 2.2330 § 23089 6.06%
Non-residential $ 1.9480 5 1.9801 S 2.0488 3.47%
AMOUNTS TO BE RAISED BY TAXES
FY13 FY 14 FY15 FY15/FY14
Actual Estimated Projected* % Change
Town $ 3,299,163 $ 3,291,673 $ 3,390,254 3.18%
Windsor County $ 42557 % 62,078 45.87%
Combined School**** $ 10,944,004 $ 11,888,201 $ 11,834,173 0.46%
Total taxes to be raised $ 14,243,167 $ 15,222,521 % 15,292,505 0.46%

* Assumes an estimated Town Grand List on April 1, 2014 of $694,474,900.

** The Y13 Actual Total Town Rate included the Windsor County taxes.

*** Under the school funding system there are two different tax rates: one for homestead property and one
for noneresidential property. A homestead is the principal dwelling owned and occupied by a resident
individual as the individual’s domicile. All non-homestead property is classified as non-residenrial.
****Based on January 2014 information from the Vermont Tax Deparrment and based on income rax year
2012 and property taxes paid in 2011, 384 Norwich taxpayers received the following Property Tax
Adjustments and Rebates: 384 received school property tax adjustments totaling $1,255,741 (of these, 125
alzo received circuit breaker tax adjustments totaling $102,342) for a rotal of $1,358,083.
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Norwich School District
2013-2014 Estimated Tax Rate Calculation

Note: Tax rate info preliminary and subject to state legislative changes.

-15

Actual Estimated
Item 2013-14 2014-15 Chg % Chg
1 Marion Cross School $5,163,548 $5,357,764 194,216 3.76%
la Deficit Reduc Article/Budget Chges $0 $0
2 plus Dresden Assessment 6,547,177 6,763,887 216,710 3.31%
2a Total Expenditures 11,710,725 12:121:65]1 410,926 3.51%
3 less Revenues and Fund Balance (excl 1,315,294 1,282,966 -32,328 -2.46%
Voc Aid)
4 equals Education Spending $10,395,431 $10,838,685 443,254 4.26%
4g Plus or {(minus) net budget changes 30 $0
5 Estimated equalized pupils 633.24 638.33 5.09 0.80%
6 Adjusted ES/Eq Pupil $16,416 $16,980 $564 3.43%
§ 6a Met Debt per Eq pupil $1,459 $1,512
- | 6b MNet Special Ed Excess per Eq Pupil $10.06
‘gg 7 Adjusted ES/Eq Pupil for purposes of $14,955 $15,458
5 Excess Spending
8 Excess Spending Threshold $15,456) $16,166 $710 4.59%
g 9  Per Pupil Spending above/(below) (501) (708)
Threshold
10 Per pupil figure for Caleulating District $16,416 $16,980] $564 3.43%
Adjustment
11 Base Amount $9,151 $9,382 $231 2.52%
12 District Spending Adjustment 179.393% 180.982% 1.590% 0.89%
13 Statewide Ed Tax Rate $0.94 $1.01 $0.07 7.45%
13a Equalized Homestead Tax $1.6863 $1.8279 0.1416 8.40%
14 Commeon level of appraisal 97.16% 99.33% 2.2% 2.23%
15 Estimated nominal tax rate $1.7356) $1.8403 0.1047 6.03%
16 Income Sensitivity Percentage 3.23% 3.33% 0.10% 3.10%
17 Non Residential Tax Rate $1.44 $1.51 0.07 4.86%
18 Divide by CLA 97.16% 99.33% 217% 2.23%
19 Nominal Non-Residential Tax Rate $1.4821 $1.5202 0.0381 2.57%
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Norwich Trust Funds

Balances [uly 1, 2012 June 30, 2013
Perpetual Care I'unds $ 8299308 % 83,893.25
Sales of Cemetery Lots Funds 25,401.63 26,540.78
Union Village Cemertery Perpetual Care Funds 36,495.24 36,495.24

Total 5 144,949.95 8 146,929.27

RECONCILIATION STATEMENT

Balance - July 1, 2012 5 144,949.95
Interest on Cemetery Trust Funds 161.75
Cemetery Lots Sold during the year 1,800.00
Prior year interest returned by Cemetery Commissioners 178.90
Interest Due From Norwich Cemetery Commissioners 137.04

Sub-total 2,877.69
Payments:
Norwich Cemetery Commiss-FY13 int on Perp Care 761.33
Interest Due To Sale of Lots Account 137.04

Sub-total (898.37)
Balance - June 30, 2013 8  146,929.27

DEPOSITS / INVESTMENTS
Perpetual Care, Savings Account, Mascoma Savings Bank $ 100.03
Sale of Lots, Savings Account, Mascoma Savings Bank 100.04
Perpetual Care, Certificate of Deposit, Mascoma Savings Bank-0.35% 120,050.94
Sale of Lots, Certificate of Deposir, Mascoma Savings Bank.35% 26,678.20
8 146,929.27

Deborah Hall, Cheryl A. Lindberg, Douglas Rexford — Trustees
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Treasurer’s Report

The Town Treasurer’s statutory duties include: paying orders authorized by the
Selectboard, School Board and Cemetery Commissioners; investing moneys with the
approval of the legislative body; appointing an Assistant Treasurer; being a member of the
Board of Abatement; and, in our Town, being a member of the Norwich and Dresden
Finance Committees. The Selectboard, Town Manager and Treasurer work together to
ensure that the financial responsibilities of the Town are met.

The General Fund of the Town ended FY13 with a deficit. Exhibit G of the Independent
Auditor’s Report (page 1-66) identifies the categories that were over and under budget for
the year. There were several budget amendments during FY13 that increased budgeted
Revenues by $151,968 and increased budgeted Expenditures by $297,319. When compared
to Actual 2013 results, the Revenues fell short of budget, and so did the Expenditures, result-
ing in an excess of Revenues over Expenditures of $529,701. Revenue categories that were
significantly over budget were Charges for Services and Miscellaneous. In total, Revenues
were $53,689 under budget. Actual 2013 Expenditures were under budget by $242,018.
Public Safety accounted for the major variance. After Other Financing Resources (Uses) of
($707,900) and Extraordinary Items of $8,786, the Net Change in Fund Balance was a neg-
ative $169,413. The GAAP version of this information is Exhibit E (page 1-64).

During the past year I attended many Town/School/Dresden board meetings, Finance
Committee meetings and Vermont Treasurer workshops. The Selectboard and School
Boards have been working on a plan to reconstitute the Norwich Finance Committee and
the Selectboard has worked on a new Town Investment Policy, both of which have been
lengthy processes. I was elected Chair of the Norwich Finance Committee in 2013, but have
not had enough members to hold meetings. In 2013 I was re-elected President of the
Vermont Government Finance Officers’ Association and [ continue to serve as one of three
Vermont representatives to the New England States GFOA Board. In 2013, Vermont host-
ed the annual meeting of the New England States GFOA, in Manchester, VT. I was re-elect-
ed Treasurer of the Dresden School District in March 2013.

As always, I would like to express my appreciation to those elected officials that serve our
Town and encourage the residents of Norwich to stay involved in our Town and School gov-
ernments. Thank you to my two Assistant Treasurers. Please consider an appointment to the
Norwich Finance Committee in 2014 and be involved in an important Committee for our
Town and School.

Cheryl A. Lindberg, Treasurer
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
& BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Selectboard
Town of Norwich
MNorwich, Vermont

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Town of Norwich, Vermont, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An andit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the Town of Norwich, Vermont, as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. ’

offices
401 water Tower Circle 27 Center Stroet 181 North Main Street 1020 Memorlal Drive 57 Farmmvu Drive
Suite 302 F.O. Box 326 St. Albans, VT 05478 St Johnsbury, VT 05819 White River Jol., VT 05001
Colchester, VT 05446 Rutland, VT 05702 (802) 5270505 (B02) 748-5654 {B02) 20503409

(802} 654-7255 (B802) 7732721
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 3—10 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements. in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assuraice.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Norwich, Vermont’s basic financial statements. The combining nonmajor fund
financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements.

The combining nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the combining nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Aunditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 2,
2013, on our consideration of the Town of Norwich, Vermont's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on internal controf over financial reporting or on compliance. The report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Town of Norwich,
Vermont's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

St. Albans, Vermont

December 2, 2013 - :
VTC;{I:gNro. 92-0000102 a 74’) p&,dc.l'\ € @Vnﬂw& LLP
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TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Our discussion and analysis of the Town of Norwich, Vermont’s financial performance provides an
overview of the Town’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, Please read it in
conjunction with the Town’s financial statements which begin on page 11.

Financial Highlights

Government Wide Financials: Audit Exhibits A & B:

* The Town’s net position increased by $434,125 or by 5.17% as a result of this year’s
operations. (Table 1)

* Investments in capital assets increased by $277,205 or 4.47% and restricted fund balances
increased by $ 270,742 or 30.11%. (Table 1)

e The cost of all of the Town’s programs was $4,180,305, a 3.30% increase over 11-12 excluding
the FEMA related items as shown in Table 2.

e The revenue for all town programs was $4,614,429, an increase of 11.82% or $487,631 over
11-12 as shown in Table 2.

e Table 3 shows how much government wide programs are supported by taxes. Two
departmenis stand out as being minimally supported. Recreation at 6.18% and Solid Waste at
19.46%.

Fund Financials: Audit Exhibits C through G:

» In the General Fund, revenues and expenditures decreased fund balance by $169,413 (Exhibit
E). A decrease in fund balance was estimated at the time of setting the tax rate of $348,909.
The use of fund balance reduces the amount of taxes raised. General Fund Revenue actual
received was $53,689 less than budgeted and actual expenditures were $242,018 less than
budgeted. {These numbers do not include FEMA revenue & expenses (Exhibit G)).

» The unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $616,352 as of June 30, 2013 a
decrease of $ 207,812 over June 30, 2012 of $824,164 (Exhibit C). The reduction is a
combination of the use of this money to offset taxes during FY13, the assigned fund balance
remaining of $61,198 as the 5% grant match for FEMA funds as voted at Town Meeting,
March 6, 2012 (originally $ 95,000) but omitted from last years assigned fund balance and
included in the unassigned fund balance, the increase in prepaids & inventory, and the
reduction in the original amount estimated to be used to offset FY 14 taxes.

e The Nonmajor Funds report an increase in Fund Balance of $270,460 increasing the fund
balance to $1,274,695 (Exhibit E).

Using This Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities (Exhibits A and B) provide information about the activities of the Town as a
whole and present a longer-term view of the Town’s finances. Fund financial statements start on
Exhibit C. For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the
short-term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the
Town’s operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about
the Town’'s most significant funds. The remaining statements provide financial information about
activities for which the Town acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside the
government.

.3-

-50



TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT
MANAGEMENT"S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Reporting the Town as a Whole

The government-wide financial statements are on Exhibit A and B. One of the most important
questions asked about the Town’s finances is, “Is the Town as a whole better off or worse off as a
result of the year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report
information about the Town as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question.
These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is
similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. Revenues are recognized when
transactions occur and expenses are recognized when liabilities are incwired. All of the current year’s
revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is reccived or paid.

These two statements report the Town’s net position and changes in them. You can think of the
Town’s net position — the difference between assets and liabilities — as one way to measure the Town’s
financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Town’s net position are
one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider
other non-financial factors, however, such as changes in the Town’s property tax base and the
condition of the Town’s roads, to assess the overall health of the Town.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we report the Town’s governmental
activities:

o Governmental activities — Most of the Town’s basic services are reported here, including the
public safety, highway and streets, solid waste, cemetery, recreation, and general
adminisiration. Property taxes and state and federal grants finance most of these activities.

Reporting the Town's Most Significant Funds

The fund financial statements begin on page 13 and provide detailed information about the most
significant funds — not the Town as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by Vermont
law and by bond covenants. However, the Town Selectboard establishes many other funds to help it
control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that il is meeting legal responsibilities
for using certain taxes, grants, and other money. The Town has governmental funds which use the
following accounting approach.

* Governmental funds — The Town’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which
focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are
available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified
accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be
converted to cash, or when revenue is measurable and available and expenditurcs when the
liability is incurred. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed shori-term view of
the Town’s general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental
fund information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that
can be spent in the near future to finance the Town’s programs. We describe the relationship
(or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and
the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in Exhibits D and F that are included in
the financial statements.
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TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

The Town as a Whole
The Town’s combined net position increased by $434,125 (Exhibit B) from a year ago. Our analysis

below focuses on the net position (Table 1) and change in net position (Table 2) of the Town’s
governmental activities.

Table 1
Net Position
Governmental Activities

T 2013 2012 Net Change

Current and other assets $ 2692815 $2635869 § 56,946

Capital assets 6,750,471 6,410,464 340,007

Total assets 9,443,286 9,046,333 396,953
Other liabilities 161,448 270,018 (108,570)

Long term liabilities 367,150 294,045 73,105
Total liabilities 528,598 564,063 (35,465)
Unearned revenue 90,875 92,582 (1,707)

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 6,481,169 6,203,964 277,205

Restricted 1,169,936 899,194 270,742
Unrestricted 1,172,708 1,286,530 (113,822)

Total net position $ 8,823,813 $ 8389688 § 434,125

Unrestricted net position — the part of net position that can be used to finance day-to-day operations
without constraints — changed from $1,286,530 at June 30, 2012, to $1,172,708, a decrease of
($113,822) (Exhibit A).
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TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

REVENUES
Program revenues:
Charges for services

Operating grants and contributions

Capital Grants and Contributions
General revenues:
Property taxes

Penalty and interest on delinquent taxes
Earnings from investments-unresiricted
Earnings from investments-restricted

Miscellaneous
Donations

Total revenues

PROGRAM EXPENSES
General government
Public Works
Public Safety
Recreation
Solid waste
Cemetery
FEMA
Interest on long-term debt

Total program expenses

Extraordinary items
FEMA Grant Revenues
Less- Flood Damage Expenses

Total Extraordinary items

Increase in net position

I-53

Table 2
Change in Net Position
Governmental Activities
2013 2012 Net Change
b 373,754  § 352,468 $ 21,286
296,930 353,670 (56,740)
474,529 - 474,529
3,378,830 3,323,061 55,769
55,590 45,822 9,768
2,802 11,393 (8,591)
1,812 - 1,812
28,295 26,365 1,930
1,887 14,019 (12,132)
4,614,429 4,126,798 487,631
1,336,846 1,265,996 70,850
1,586,994 1,549,276 37,718
881,317 884,365 (3,048)
194,616 185,059 9,557
129,877 134,974 (5,097)
21,077 16,552 4,525
22,325 - 22,325
7,252 10,626 (3,374)
4,180,304 4,046,848 133,456
- 525,742 (525,742)
- 539,756 (539,756)
- (14,014) 14,014
3 434,125 $ 65,936 $ 368,189
-6-



TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Governmental Activities

The increase in net position for governmental activities was $434,125 in 2013. This amount is how
much revenue exceeds expenses. Compared to 2012, revenues increased by $487,631 primarily
because charges for services and awarded grants increased. Expenses increased by $133,456. This
increase is primarily due to the increase in designated fund contributions and awarded grants.

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $4,180,305. (Exhibit B) However, as shown in
the Statement of Activities, Exhibit B, the amount that Town taxpayers ultimately financed for the
activities through Town taxes was $3,378,830 because some of the costs were paid by those who
directly benefitted from the programs ($373,754) or by other governments and organizations that
subsidized certain programs with granis and contributions ($771,459).

Table 3 presents the cost of cach of the Town’s seven largest programs — general government, public
works, public safety, recreation, solid waste, cemetery, and interest on debt— as well as each program’s
net cost (total cost less revenue generated by the activities). The net cost shows the financial burden
that was placed on the Town’s taxpayers by each of these functions.

For fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 two departments stood out as minimally supported by taxpayers.
The Solid Waste Division of Public Works was tax supported by 19.46% and the Recreation
Department by 6.18%.

Table 3
Governmental Activities
2013 2012
2013 %
Total Cost Net Cost Support Total Cost Net Cost
of Services of Services From Taxes of Services of Services
General Government $ 1,336,847 § 1,176,368 88.00% $ 1,265,996 § 1,019,378
Public Works 1,586,994 1,041,354 65.62% 1,549,276 1,395,315
Public Safety 881,317 765,522 86.86% 884,365 836,749
Recreation 194,616 12,036 6.18% 185,059 37,234
Solid Waste 129,877 25279 19.46% 134,974 18,322
Cemetery 21,077 16,027 76.04% 16,552 16,552
FEMA 22,325 (8,786) -39.35%
Interest on debt 7.252 7,252 100.00% 10,626 10,626
Totals $ 4,180,305 $ 3,035,092 $ 4,046,848 $ 3,334,176
-
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TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

The Town’s Funds

As the Town completed the year, its governmental funds (as presented in the Balance Sheet on Exhibit
C) reported a combined fund balance of $2,223,720, an increase of $101,044 from last year’s total of
$2,122,676.

Exhibit G compares actual to budget for the General Fund. Actual expenditures exceeded actual
revenue by § 169,413, (Exhibit G). Unrestricted fund balance of $ 348,909 was earmarked to be used
to reduce taxes however $ 169,413 was actually used, a difference or savings of § 179,496.

The most significant variances of actual to budget were as follows:

Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual  (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Taxes $3.,436,525 $3,328,292 $ (108,233)
Intergovernmental Revenue 241,378 220,422 (20,956)
Charges for Services 285,183 323,298 38,115
Expenditures:
Public Works 1,192,314 1,075,293 117,021
General Government 1,418,155 1,284,971 133,184
Solid Waste 147,728 126,091 21,637

The revenue budget to actual had an unfavorable balance of ($53,689). Explanations for the
significant line items mentioned above include the following. Tax Revenue actual was $108,233 less
than budgeted because of litigation settlements in the amount of $33,330, BCA & State Board
reductions of $18,719 for tax appeals, and an increase in deferred revenue of $50,538 for delinquent
taxes. Intergovernmental revenue was $20,956 less than budgeted primarily because it was anticipated
that the town would receive more gas tax funds due to the taking over of Church Street and Main
Street/Rte. 10A, which did not happen. Charges for Services had three areas of interest. Solid waste
was under budget by ($20,718) but recording and recreation exceeded the budget by $20,450 and
$36,644 respectfully.

Authorized expenditures were under spent by $242,018. Explanations for the significant line items
mentioned above include the following. Public Works was underspent by $ 117,021, Staffing changes
and less overtime accounted for $43.800 not being spent, $26,700 less than budgeted was spent on
winter roads, $ 21,100 was not spent on gravel, $13,300 less was spent on Class 2 & 3 road supplies
and $7.300 was not spent on streetlights due to the non-acquisition of Main Street/Rie. 10A. General
Government was underspent by $133,184. The primary areas underspent were Town Administration
$41,000, Finance, $32,900, Assessor/Lister $61,700. The Solid Waste savings of $21,637 were due to
a reduction in the amount of waste and recycling that came into the Transter Station thereby reducing
costs of disposal by a hauler.

-8
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TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT
MANAGEMENT"S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

As found in audit Note 4 and Table 4 below, the June 30, 2013 net capital assets are $6,750,471. This
represents a broad range of capital assets, including public works, police and fire equipment, buildings,
and infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation. (See Table 4 below) This amount represents a net
increase (including additions, deletions and depreciation) of $340,007 over last year.

Table 4
Capital Assets at Year-End
(Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

Governmental Activities

2013 2012

Land $ 653,559 $ 653,559
Art 11,140 11,140
Vehicles 1,683,537 1,755,804
Mobile equipment 1,082,702 1,057,084
Infrastructure 4,627,087 3,888,543
Buildings and improvements 1,911,115 1,883,698
Equipment 691,371 530,964
Less: Accumulated depreciation (3,910,040) (3.370,328)

Totals $ 6,750,471 $ 6410464

This year’s major additions included:

DPW-Paving $ 477,148
Bridge 41 Turnpike Rd. 236,134
Construction in Progress for Tower, Pool, Public Safety Facilities 189,654
Tennis Court Resurfacing 23,000
Police Cruisers-net of insurance and prior value 25,618
Fire Department Car 1 26,816
New Computers 4,822

Totals $ 983,192

9.
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TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Debt

At June 30, 2013, the Town had $269,302 in bonds and notes outstanding versus $206,500 on June 30,
2012 — an increase of $62,802 — as shown in Table 5.

Table 5
Outstanding Debt at Year-End
Governmental Activities
2013 2012
General obligation bonds-Tracy Hall $ 90,000 $ 135,000
Capital Leases- Grader & Communications 179,302 71,500
Totals $ 269,302 $ 206,500

Increase § 62,802

Lease Purchase

During FY11 the Town entered into a lease-purchase agreement with John Deere Financial for a John
Deere 672 Motor Grader for 5 years for § 71,500 and total interest of $ 4,671. In this fiscal year, the
town entered into a lease purchase agreement with Tax Exempt Leasing Corp. for $125,000 for
equipment upgrades for the communication system. This agreement is for 5 years and total interest
costs will be $9,432. No payments were made on the communications lease purchase during this fiscal
year.

Economic Factors and Fiscal Year 2014 Budget

The FY 14 voter approved expenditure budget is $4,315,183. The Selectboard at the time of sefting
the municipal tax rate ($0.4918) estimated the use of $245,768 of undesignaied fund balance to offset
taxes and additional funds in the amount of $80,000 were added into the projected tax revenue to offset
tax adjustments due to BCA hearings and seftlements because of the town wide reappraisal.

Article 34 was also approved by the voters which called for the borrowing of $275,000 in general
obligation bonds for the purpose of constructing a communications tower, rather than partner with
VTel. The subsequent bonding resulted in a 10 year loan with total interest costs of $45,315. It was
decided that this tower would be for governmental uses only during the bond payback period.

The Town’s General Fund unresiricted fund balance is expected to decrease from the current
undesignated fund balance because of its use to reduce taxes.

Contacting the Town’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors
with a general overview of the Town’s finances and to show the Town’s accountability for the money
it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the
Finance Office at Town of Norwich, PO Box 376, Norwich, Vermoni, 05055 or
finance(@norwich.vt.us or §02-649-1419 ext. 105.

-10-
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TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2013

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Grants receivable
Property taxes receivable, net
Interest and penalties receivable, net
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
Capital Assets:
Art
Land
Vehicles
Mobile equipment
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Infrastructure
Accumulated depreciation

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Acerued payroll taxes and benefits

Accrued wages

Accrued interest payable

Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds and capital lease obligation due within one year
Bonds and capital lease obligation due after one year
Accrued compensated absences due after one year

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unearned revenue

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for permanent funds
Restricted for other purposes
Restricted for capital projects
Unrestricted

Total net position

See accompanying notes.

-11-
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EXHIBIT A

Governmental

Activities

$ 2,183,068
9,255

216,123
182,849
45,045

16,047

40,428

11,140

653,559
1,683,537
1,082,702
1,911,115

691,371
4,627,087

3,910,040
9,443,286

117,974
8,964
32,378
2,132

86,322
182,980
97,848

528,598

90,875
90,875

6,481,169
150,840
126,326
892,770

1,172,708

$ 8,823,813



Functions/Programs

Governmental Activitics
General government
Public works
Public safety
Recreation
Solid waste
Cemetery
FEMA
Intetest on debt

Total governmental activities

See accompanying notes.

TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT

EXHIBIT B

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Change in
Frogram Revenues Net Position
Charges Operating Capital
for Grants and Grants and Governmental
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities
$ 1,336,847 F 78,578 3 81,901 $ - 3 (1,176,368)
1,586,994 - 170,207 375,393 (1,041,394}
881,317 13,789 33,981 68,025 (765,522)
194,616 176,789 5,791 - (12,036)
129.877 104,598 - - (25,279)
21,077 - 5,050 - (16,027)
22,325 - - 31,111 8,786
7,252 - - - (7,252)
§ 4,180,305 § 373,754 b3 296,930 b 474,529 (3,035,092)
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 3,378,830
Interest and penalties on delinquent taxes 53,590
Earnings on investment - unrestricted 2,802
Eamings on investment - restricted 1812
Miscellaneous 28,295
Donations 1,887
Total general revenues 3.469,217
Change in net position 434,125
Met position, Beginning of year 8.389.688
Net position, End of year $ 8,823,813
-12-

1-60



FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[-61



EXHIBIT C
TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2013
Major Fund Ny jor Funds
Other
General Governmental
Fund Funds Totals
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents b3 2,008,468 $ 174,600 $ 2,183,068
Accounts receivable, net 9,255 - 9,235
Grants receivable 38,699 177,424 216,123
Delinquent taxes receivable, net 182,849 - 182,849
Interest and penalties receivable, net 45,045 - 45,045
Due from other funds - 1,015,845 1,015,845
Prepaid expenses 16,047 - 16,047
Inventory 40,428 - 40,428
Total assets b 2,340,791 5 1,367,869 b 3,708,660
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3 107,118 8 10,856 3 117,974
Accrued payroll taxes and benelits 8,964 - 8,964
Accrued wages 32,378 - 32,378
Due to other funds 933,527 82,318 1,015,845
Total liabilities 1,081.987 93,174 1,175,161
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 218,904 - 218,904
Uncamned revenue 90,875 - 90,875
Total deferred inflows of resources 305,779 - 309,779
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Prepaids and inventory 56,475 - 36,475
Restricted: )
Permanent funds - 150,840 150,840
Special revenue funds - 126,326 126,326
Capital project funds - 892,770 892,770
Assigned:
FEMA reserves 61,198 - 61,198
Subsequent year's budget 215,000 - 215,000
Special revenue fimds - 104,759 104,759
Unassigned 616,352 - 616,352
Total fund balances 949,025 1,274,695 2,223,720
Total liahilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances 3 2,340,791 g 1,367,869 § 3,708,660
See accompanying notes.
-13-

162



EXHIBIT D
TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENT FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2013

TOTAL FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $2.223,720

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported as
assets in governmental funds.

Cost of capital assets 10,660,511
Accumulated depreciation (3,910,040)
Net capital assets 6,750,471

Other liabilities are not available to pay for current period expenditures,
therefore are deferred in the General Fund. The following are added back:
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 218,904

Long-term liabilities, including bonds and notes payable
are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are
not reported as liabilities in the funds. Long-term liabilities at
year end consist of:

Bonds and capital lease payable (269,302)

Accrued interest payable (2,132)

Accrued compensated absences (97,848)
TOTAL NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 8,823,813

See accompanying notes.

-14 -
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TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

REVENUES
Property taxes
Penallies and interest
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Grants
FEMA grant revenues
Insurance proceeds
Gain on sale of equipment
Donations
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government
Public works
Public safety
Recreation
Solid waste
Cemetery
Capital outlays
Flood damages
Debt service
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficlency) of revenues
over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Capital lease transaction

Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

See accompanying notes.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

EXHIBIT E

Major Fund Nonmajor Funds
Other
General Governmental
Fund Funds Totals
b3 3,328,292 :] - 5 3,328,292
39,382 - 39,382
9,925 - 9,925
220,422 - 220,422
323,298 - 323,298
12,311 - 12,311
2,802 1,811 4,613
222,654 286,303 508,957
31,111 - 3,111
- 131,879 131,879
- 1 1
- 12,628 12,628
54,382 2,360 56,742
4,244,579 434,982 4,679,561
1,193,592 97,838 1,291,430
1,075,293 1,151 1,076,444
788,791 1,151 789,942
182,893 26,535 209,428
126,091 - 126,091
- 21,616 21,616
236,888 849,131 1,086,019
47,587 - 47,587
45,000 - 45,000
9,957 - 9,957
3,706,092 997,422 4,703,514
538,487 (562,440) (23,953)
- 125,000 125,000
- 708.799 708,799
(707,900} (899) {708,799)
{707,900} 832,300 125,000
(169,413) 270,460 101,047
1,118,438 1,004,235 2,122,673
b 949,025 b 1,274,695 s 2,223,720
-15-
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EXHIBIT F
TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT
OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO
THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

TOTAL NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Exhibit E} $ 101047

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not reported as expenditures
however, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays net of disposals and adjustments of $945,888
exceeds capital outlays depreciation expense of $605,881 in the period. 340,007

Property taxes are recognized on an accrual basis in the statement of net position,
not the modified accroal basis. 66,743

Repayment of bond and note principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. 45,000

Repayment of capital lease obligation is an expenditure in the governmental funds
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. 17,198

Capital lease obligations is a financing source in the governmental funds and
reported as a long-term liability in the statement of net position. {125,000)

Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported
in the governmental funds because interest is recognized as an expenditure in the funds
when it is due, and thus requires the use of current financial resources. In the statement
of activities, however, interest expense is recognized as the interest accrues, regardless
of when it is due. The additional interest reported in the statement of activities is
because accrued interest on bonds and notes payable increased by $567. (567)

In the statement of activities, accrued compensated absences are measured by the amounts
incurred during the year. In the government funds, however, expenditures for these items
are measured by the amount of financial resources used (essentially, the amounts actually

paid). This year, amounts incurred exceeded compensated absences paid by $10,303. (10,303)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (Exhibit B) $ 434,125

See accompanying notes.
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TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

EXHIBIT G

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
Variance
Budget Favorable
Original Budget A il Final Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Tanxes $ 3484378 $ (47.833) % 3,436,525 $ 3328292 $  (108.233)
Penalties and interest 35,000 - 35,000 39,382 4,382
Licenses and permits 10,450 (2,950) 7,500 9.925 2,425
Infergovernmental 241,378 - 241,378 220,422 (20,956)
Charges for services 285,183 - 285,183 323,298 38,115
Fines and forfeiturcs 22,700 (7,700} 15,000 12,311 (2.689)
Investment income 7,500 - 7,500 2,802 (4,698)
Grant income - 217,071 217,071 222,654 5,583
Miscellaneous 28,600 (6,600) 22,000 54,382 32,382
Total revenues 4,115,189 151,968 4,267,157 4,213,468 (53,689
EXPENDITURES
Current -
CGeneral government 1,324,229 53,926 1,418,155 1,284,971 133,184
Public works 1,171,607 20,707 1,192,314 1,075,293 117,021
Public safety 673,163 1,695 674,858 697,412 (22,554)
Recreation 176,503 23,876 200,379 208,155 {1,776)
Solid waste 147728 - 147,728 126,091 21,637
Capital outlays 83,100 157,115 240,215 236,888 3,327
Debt scrvice
Principal 45,000 - 43,000 43,000 -
Tnterest 7,136 - 7,136 9.957 (2,821)
Total expenditures 3,628,466 297,319 3,925,785 3.683.767 242,018
Excess of over expendi 486,723 (145,351} 341,372 529,701 188,329
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out for capital outlays (692,500 - (92,900 {707,900} 15,000
Total other financing sources {1ses) (692,500} - {692 904} (707,900% 15,000
Net change in fund balance before
exiraordinary items (206,177} {145,351} (351,528) (178,199) 173,329
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Grant Revenues - FEMA and VT ERAF - - - 31,111 3111
Flood Damage S - (22,325) (22,325)
Total extraordinary flems - - - R, 786 8,786
Net change in fund balance b (206,177) § (145331 § (351,528) _§ (169413) _§ 182115
See accompanying notes.
-17-
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TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

The Town of Norwich, Vermont (the Town), is organized according to Vermont State Law. The
Town operates under a Town Manager form of government and provides the following services:
public safety, highways and streets, recreation, public improvements, solid waste, planning and
zoning, and general administration.

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Town’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). The Governmental Account Standards Board (GASB) is primarily
responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements
(including Statements and Interpretations). The more significant accounting policies established
in GAAP and used by the Town are discussed below.

Reporting Entity

The Town’s basic financial statements include the accounts of all Town operations. The criteria
for including organizations as component units within the Town’s reporting entity are set forth in

Section 2100 of GASB’s Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting
Standards, and GASB Statement 14 as amended by GASB Statements 39 and 61.

Based on the criteria, the Town has no component units.
Basis of Presentation

The Town’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide financial statements,
including a statement of net position and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements,
which provide a more detailed level of financial information.

Government-wide Financial Statements - The governmeni-wide financial statements include
the statement of net position and the statement of activities. These statements report financial
information for the Town as a whole. Individual funds are not displayed but the statements
distinguish governmental activities, generally supported by taxes and grants and the Town's
general revenues, from business-type activities, generally financed in whole or in part with fees
charged to external customers. The fiduciary funds of the primary government are not included
in the government-wide financial statements. The Town does not have any business-type
activities or fiduciary funds.

The statement of net position presents the financial position of the govermmental activities of the
Town at year-end.

-18 -
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues
for each function of the Town's governmental activitics. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a function and therefore clearly identifiable to that particular
function. The Town does not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the statement of
activities.

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program revenues
directly connected with the functional program. A function is an assembly of similar activities
and may include portions of a fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the expenses
and program revenues associated with a distinct functional activity. Program revenues include:
(1) charges for services which report fees and other charges to users of the Town's services; (2)
operating grants and contributions which finance annual operating activities including restricted
investment income; and (3) capital grants and coniributions which fund the acquisition,
construction, or rehabilitation of capital assets. These revenues are subject to externally imposed
restrictions to these program uses. For identifying to which function program revenue pertains,
the determining factor for charges for services is which function generates the revenue. For
grants and contributions, the determining factor is to which function the revenues are restricted.

Other revenue sources not properly included with program revenues are reported as general
revenues of the Town. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the
extent to which each governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues
of the Town.

Fund Financial Statements - During the year, the Town segregaies transactions related to
certain Town functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and
to demonstrate legal compliance. Fund financial statements are designed to present financial
information of the Town at this more detailed level. Fund financial statements are provided for
governmental funds.

Major individual governmental funds are reported in separate columns.

Fund Accounting - The Town uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. A
fund is a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. The Town uses one
category of funds: governmental.

Governmental Funds - Government funds are those through which most governmental functions
typically are financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances
of current financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds
according to the purposes for which they may or must be used. Fund liabilities are assigned to
the fund from which they will be liquidated. The Town reports the difference between its
governmental fund assets and its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources as fund balance.
The following is the Town's major governmental fund:

-19 -

[-68



NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Major Governmental Funds

General Fund - The general fund accounts for all financial resources except those
required to be accounted for in another fund. The general fund's fund balance is available
to the Town for any purpose provided it is expended or transferred according to the
general laws of the State of Vermont.

Measurement Focus

Government-wide Financial Statements - The government-wide financial statemenis are
prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. All assets, all liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources associated with the operation of the Town are included on the statement of
net position. The statement of activities reports revenues and expenses.

Fund Financial Statements - All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current
financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets,
current liabilities and deferred inflows and outflows of resources generally are included on the
balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances reports the
sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.c., expenditures and other
financing uses) of current financial resources. This approach differs from the manner in which
the governmental activities of the government-wide financial statements are prepared.
Governmental fund financial statements therefore include reconciliations with brief explanations
to better identify the relationship between government-wide statements and the governmental
fund statements.

Like the government-wide statements, all proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of
economic resources measurement focus on both financial reporting levels. All assets and all
liabilities associated with the operations of these funds are included on the statements of net
position. The statements of changes in fund net position present increases (i.e., revenues) and
decreases (i.e., expenses) in total net position. The statements of cash flows provide information
about how the Town finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activitics. The
Town does not have any proprietary activities.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial record and
reported on the financial statements. Governmenl-wide [inancial statements are prepared using
the accrual basis of accounting. At the fund reporting level, the governmental funds use the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds, if any, use the accrual basis at the fund
reporting level. Differences in the accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the
recognition of revenue, the recording of deferred inflows and outflows of resources, and in the
presentation of expenses versus expenditures.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNT POLICIES (Continued)

Revenues - Exchange Transactions - Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which
each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the
exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded when the exchange
takes place and in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available.
Available means that the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected
to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For
the Town, the phrase "available for exchange transaction” means expected to be received within
60 days of year-end.

Revenues - Non-exchange Transactions - Non-exchange transactions in which the Town
receives value without directly giving equal value in return, includes property taxes, grants and
donations. Revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are
levied. Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which
specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the year when use is first
permitted, matching requirements, in which the Town must provide local resources to be used for
a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the
Town on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange
transactions also must be available (i.e., collected within 60 days) before it can be recognized in
the governmental funds.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered 1o be susceptible
to accrual: property taxes and federal and state grants.

Unearned Revenue - Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue
recognition criteria have been satisfied.

Expenses/Expenditures - On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the
time they are incurred. On the modified accrual basis, expenditures generally are recognized in
the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred and due, if measurable.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Town has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, demand deposits, and
cash with fiscal agent. Cash equivalents consist of short-term, highly liquid investments which
are readily convertible into cash with an initial maturity of ninety (90) days or less.

Inventory

Inventory in the General Fund consists of expendable supplies held for the Town's use and are
carried at cost using the first-in, first-out method.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNT POLICIES (Continued)
Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost above certain thresholds are reported at
historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair value as of the
date received. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the
useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are
expensed as incurred. Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straighi-line basis over the
following estimated useful lives:

Capitalization Estimated

Threshold Useful Life

Vehicles $ 15,000 3-20 years
Mobile equipment 15,000 5-15 years
Infrastructure 50,000 8-25 years
Buildings and equipment 10,000 10-75 years
Equipment 5,000 3-10 years

GASB Statement No. 34 requires the Town to report and depreciate new general infrastructure
assets prospectively starting July 1, 2004, General infrastructure assets include roads, bridges,
underground pipe, traffic signals, etc.

Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Town has only one
type of item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting, that qualifies for
reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the
governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report vnavailable revenues from
properly taxes. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the
period that the amounts become available.

Accrued Compensated Absences
It is the Town’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation benefits.

The accrual for the unused compensated absences time, based on current pay rates, is recorded in
the government-wide financial statements.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNT POLICIES (Continued)
Accrued Liabilities and Long-term Obligations

All payables, accrued labilities and long-term obligation are reported in the government-wide
financial statements.

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a
timely manner and in full from current financial resources, are reported as obligations of the
these funds. However, compensated absences that will be paid from governmental funds are
reported as a liability in the fund financial statements only to the extent that they are "due for
payment" during the current year. Capital leases are recognized as an expenditure in the
governmental funds financial statements when paid.

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources, and
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Net investment in capital assets consists of cost of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any
borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. This net
investment in capital assets amount also is adjusted by any bond issuance deferral amounts. Net
position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on its use either through the
enabling legislation adopted by the Town or through external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors or laws or regulations of other governments. All other net position is reported as
unrestricted.

The Town applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted net position is available.

Fund Balances

Fund balances of governmental fund type financial statements are classified as nonspendable
(not in spendable form or legally required to remain intact); restricted (constraints on the use of
resources are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, or donors, or imposed by law
through enabling legislation); committed (constraints on the use of resources are imposed by
formal action of the voters at town meeting); assigned (reflecting the select board’s intended use
of the resources); and unassigned (indicates the portion of fund equity that is available for
appropriation and expenditure in future periods).

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town’s policy to
use externally restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources-committed, assigned and
unassigned-in order as needed.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNT POLICIES (Continued)
Interfund Balances

On the fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund
loans are classified as "interfund receivable/interfund payables." These amounts are eliminated
in the governmental activities columns of the statement of net position.

Receivables

The Town utilizes the allowance method for uncollectible accounts. They have determined that
all accounts are collectible and the allowance is zero.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and labilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Budgetary Information

The gross expenditure budget, not including state and federal grants and gifts, is approved at the
amnual Town Meeting in March. Any increase in the voted amount requires voter approval. The
voters do not approve a revenue budget. Exhibit G reflects the revenues anticipated and
presented to the voters in the annual report. At tax rate setting time, revenues are re-estimated
and the Selectboard decides on how much of the prior-year unassigned fund balance will be
used, if any.

At the time of Town Meeting, it was anticipated that the Town would use $246,177 of prior-year
unassigned fund balance to help fund the budgeted expenditures of fiscal year 2013. When the
tax ratc was set, in July 2012, the Selectboard decided that $351,528 of prior-year unassigned
fund balance would be used and the Selectboard added $40,000 for a reserve for unpaid taxes
and BCA adjustments.

Implementation of new accounting principles

Tor the year ending June 30, 2013 the town implemented the following statement of financial
accounting standards issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board:

GASDB Statement No. 64, Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting
Termination Provisions
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNT POLICIES (Continued)
Implementation of new accounting principles (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 64 is an amendment of GASB No. 53. The objective of this Statement is
to clarify whether an effective hedging relationship continues after the replacement of a swap
counterparty or a swap counterparty’s credit support provider. This statement sets forth criteria
that cstablish when the effective hedging relationship continues and hedge accounting should
continue to be applied. The Town has determined that this statement is not applicable.

The Town implemented GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, and GASB Statement No. 65, ftems
Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. These
statements required changes in account captions in the statements of net position and
reclassification of certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities to deferred
items.

In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans - an
amendment of GASB Statement 25. GASB 67 improves financial reporting by state and local
governments pension plans. The requirements of this Statement will improve financial reporting
primarily through enhanced note disclosures and schedules or required supplementary
information that will be presented by the pension plans that are within its scope. This Statement
is effective for financial staternents for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2013. Management
is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this statement on the Town's financial
statements.

In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions -
an amendment of GASB Statement 27. GASB 68 improves accounting and financial reporting
by state and local governments for pensions. It also improves information provided by state and
local governmental employers about financial support for pensions that is provided by other
entities. This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing
standards of accounting and financial reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision-
useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and inter-period equity and creating
additional transparency. This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2014. Management is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this statement on the
Town's financial statements.

NOTE 2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The Treasurer is authorized to invest excess deposits and make investments and provide
quarterly reports to the Selectboard and is charged with maximizing the return on all invested
funds while maintain their security. By state statute, the Trustees may invest in any security
issued, insured, or guaranteed by the United States; highly related bonds; repurchase agreements
and debt securities of any federally insured financial institution; shares of a registered investment
company, or a unit investment trust, if such mutual investment fund has been in operation for at
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NOTE 2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

least ten years and has net assets of at least $500,000,000; or deposits in federally nsured
financial institutions.

Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the Town’s deposits may not be returned to it. As of June 30, 2013, the government’s
bank balance of $2,220,148 was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Insured (FDIC) 3 414,662
Uninsured, collateralized by repurchase
agreements of the pledging financial

institution, but not in the Town’s name 1,805,486
$ 2220148

Book balances for cash and investments are comprised of the following:
Cash $ 2183068

NOTE 3. INTER-FUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The Town has combined some of the cash resources of its governmental funds for accounting
and reporting purposes, that portion of the pooled cash balance is reported in the specific fund as
an inter-fund balance. Inter-fund balances at June 30, 2013 are as follows:

Inter-fund Inter-fund
Receivables Payables

Governmental funds

General fund 5 - b 933,527
Other governmental funds

Special Revenue Funds

Conservation Commission 100,190 -
Recreation 37,237 =
Cemetery 15,000 137
Kids & Cops 919 -
Affordable Housing 45,018 -
Land Management Council 3,650 -
Recreation Scholarship 1,192 -
Citizens assistance 641 -

Tatal special revenue funds 203,847 137
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NOTE 3. INTER-FUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (Continued)

Inter-fund Inter-fund
Receivables Payables
Capital Project Funds

Highway Equipment 131,941 -
Highway Garage 28,899 -
Solid Waste Equipment 14,326 -
Police Station 14,023 -
Police Cruiser/Special Equipment 64,257 -
Town Reappraisal 66,331 -
Tracy Hall 51,015 -
Bandstand 1 -
General Administration 13,368 -
Recreation Dam 26,984 -
Recreation Tennis 94 -
Communications Study 40,398 -
Town Clerk Equipment 7,993 -
Fire Apparatus 202,018 -
Fire Station 33,046 -
Fire Equipment 50,940 -
Sidewalk 46,428 -
Long Term Facility 10,484 -
Buildings and Grounds 5,002 -
Homeland Security - 24,973
Grant Match - 57,208

Taotal capital project funds 807,548 82,181

Permanent Funds

Sale Of Cemetery Lots 137 -
WCTU Foundation 1,070 -
School/Gospel Leaseland 1,075 -
Main 5t. Flags Fund 1,938 -
Corridor Tree Fund 230 -

Total permanent funds 4,450 -

Total other governmental funds 1,015,845 82318

Total governmental funds $1,015,845 § 1,015,845
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NOTE 4. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows:

Balance Reclassifications Balance
June 30, 2012 Additions Deletions Depreciation June 30, 2013
Governmental activities
Capital assets not depreciated
Land 5 653,559 5 - b3 - £ - b3 653,559
Art 11,140 - - - 11,140
‘Total capital assets not depreciated 664,699 - - - 664,699
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and Improvements 1,883,698 27417 - - 1,911,115
Vehicles 1,755,804 26,816 {99,083) - 1,683,537
Mobile equipment 1,057,084 25,618 - - 1,082,702
Equipment 530,964 164,797 (4,390) - 691,371
Infrastructure 3,388,543 738,544 . . 4,627,087
Total capital assets being depreciated 9,116,093 983,192 (103,473) - 9,995,812
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements {732,704) - = (58,151) (790,855)
Vehicles {727,386) - 63,713 (94,113) (757,7886)
Mobile equipment (337,639) - - (63,507) (401,146)
Equipment (317,26T) - 2,456 (33,907) (348.718)
Infrastructure (1,255,332) - - (356,203) (1,611,535)
Total accumulated depreciation (3,370,328) - 6,169 {605,881) (3,910,040)
Total capital assets, net 5 6410404 $ 983192 3 (37,304) $  (605,881) 5 6,750,471
Depreciation expense was charged to the functions as follows:
Governmental activities:

General government $ 25,329

Highway and streets 488,717

Public safety 76,014

Recreation 12,035

Solid waste 3,786

Total governmental activities depreciation expense $ 605881
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NOTE 5. UNEARNED REVENUE

Unearned revenue in the General Fund per Exhibit C consists of $53,342 of prepaid taxes,
$33,093 of prepaid recreation fees, and $4,440 of prepaid sticker. Total unearned revenue in the

General Fund is $90,875.

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Changes in the Town's long-term obligations consisted of the following for the year ended June
30,2013
Outstanding Quistanding ~ Amount Due
Governmental Activities 712012 Additions Reductions 6/30/2013 in One Year
Capital leases $ 71,500 0§ 125000 § 17198 § 179302 § 41323
Bonds payable 135,000 - 45,000 90,000 45,000
Compensated absences §7,545 21,558 11,255 97,848 -
Total Governmental Activities $ 204045 § 146558 0§ M4 0§ . 367150 5 86323
Bonds payable include the following:
Due
Total Within
Governmental Activities Due One Year
General obligation municipal bonds with the Vermont Municipal
Bond Bank, originally $540,000, proceeds used for
Tracy Hall renovations, due in annual installments of $45,000
on December 1 through 2014, variable interest due semi-annually,
currently at 6.03%. § 90,000 b3 45,000
£ 90,000 5 45,000
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NOTE 6.  LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)
Bonds payable will mature approximately as follows:

Governmental Activities

Years Ending Principal Interest Total

June 30, 2014 $ 45000 $ 4297 § 49297

June 30, 2015 45,000 1,436 46,436
thereafter - - -
Total $ 90,000 $ 5,733 $ 95,733

During FY11, the Town entered into a lease-purchase agreement with John Deere Financial. The
lease meets the criteria of a lease-purchase as defined by generally accepted accounting
principles, which defines a lease-purchase generally as one which transfers benefits and risks of
ownership to the lessee. The lease was used to fund the Town’s acquisition of a new grader.
Capital assets acquired by the lease purchase have been capitalized in the amount of $221,500.
There was a down payment of $150,000 and the remainder of $71,500 was financed as a capital
lease.

During the current fiscal year, the Town entered into a lease-purchase agreement with Tax-
Exempt Leasing Corp. The lease meets the criteria of a lease-purchase as defined by generally
accepted accounting principles. The lease was used to fund the Town's communications
equipments for the upgrades to the fire, police and public works radio communications systems.
Capital assets acquired by the lease purchase have been capitalized in the amount of $175,878.
Of the amount capitalized, $125,000 was financed as a capital lease. There were no principal
payments on this lease-purchase during fiscal year 2013.

The total assets acquired through the capital leases are equipment of $397.378 with a
corresponding accumulated depreciation of $28,500, for a net asset value of $368,878.

The following is a schedule of the future long-term minimum lease payments required under the
lease-purchase agreements and the present value of the minimum lease payments as of June 30,
2013:

Years Ending Principal Interest Total

June 30, 2014 5 41,323 $ 4,605 $ 45928

June 30, 2015 42,420 3,509 45,929

June 30, 2016 43,545 2,383 45,928

June 30, 2017 25,660 1228 26,887

June 30, 2018 26,354 333 26,886
thereafter - - -
Total $ 179,302 3 12,258 $ 191,560
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NOTE 7. FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable fund balances at June 30, 2013 are as follows:

Residual
Balance Equity Balance
July 1,2012 Increase Decrease Transfer June 30, 2013
Major Funds
General Fund
Prepaids and inventory $ 48,100 % 8375 % $ 56,475
Assigned fund balances at June 30, 2013 are as follows:
Major Funds
General Fund
FEMA reserves b3 - 3 61,198 % - b 61,198
Subsequent Year's budget 246,177 - (31,177) - 215,000
Total General Fund 246,177 61,198 (31,177) 276,198
Nonmajor Funds
Special Revenue Funds
Conservation Commission 99,982 208 - 100,190
Kids and Cops 918 1 - 919
Land Management Couneil 4,141 - (491) 3,650
Total special revenue funds 105,041 209 (491} 104,759
Total assigned fund balances § 351218 % 61,407 5 (31,668) § 380957
Restricted fund balances at June 30, 2013 are as follows:
Nonmajor Funds
Special Revenue Funds
Recreation Fund by 32,535 3 4,702 b3 - ¥ 37,237
Cemetery Fund 41,996 242 - 42,238
Affordable Housing Fund - 45,018 - 45,018
Recreation Scholarship Fund 649 543 - 1,192
Citizens Assistance 2,989 - (2.348) 641
Total special revenue funds 78,169 50,505 (2,348) 126,326
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NOTE 7. FUND BALANCES (Continued)

Residual
Balance Equity Balance
July 1, 2012 Increase Decrease Transfer June 30, 2013
Capital Projects Funds
Highway Equipment 10,928 121,013 - - 131,941
Highway Garage 28.863 - (1,120% - 27,748
Solid Waste Equipment 9,313 5,013 - - 14,326
Police Station 11,509 1,363 - - 12,872
Police Cruiser/Special Equipment 41,231 23,026 - - 64,257
Reappraisal 118,092 - (51,761) - 66,331
Tracy Hall 50,960 55 - - 51,015
Bandstand 1 - - - 1
General Administration 10,355 3,013 - - 13,368
Recreation Dam 26,955 29 - - 26,984
Recreation - Tennis Courts 13,092 - (12,998) - 94
Route 132 Bridge 20,167 20,231 - - 40,398
Town Clerk Equipment 7,985 8 - - 7.993
Fire Station 33,010 - (1,115) - 31,895
Fire Equipment 47,163 3,777 - - 50,940
Fire Apparatus 166,634 35,384 - - 202,018
Sidewalk 31,388 15,040 - - 46,428
Long Term Facility 10,473 - (953) - 9,520
DPW Bridge Fund 35,042 17,149 - - 52,191
Buildings and Grounds - 5,002 - - 5,002
Tower Construction Fund - 37.448 37,448
Total capital projects funds 673,166 287,551 (67,947) - 892,770
Permanent Funds

Perpetual Care 119,488 900 - - 120,388
Sale of Cemetery Lots 25,641 1,037 - - 26,678
WCTU Foundation 1,069 1 - - 1,070
School/Gospel Leaseland 1,074 1 - - 1,075
Main Street flag 357 1,042 - - 1,399
Corridor tree and Alura Grant 230 - - - 230
Total permanent funds 147,859 2,981 - - 150,840
Total restricted fund balances § 899,194 $ 341,037 F (70,295) $ - $ 1,169,936

-32-

[-81



NOTE 8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Town participates in a number of federally assisted and state grant programs. Entitlement to
the resources is generally based on compliance with terms and conditions of the grant
agreements and applicable federal regulations, including the expenditure of the resources for
eligible purposes. Substantially all grants are subject to financial and compliance audits by the
grantors or their representatives. Any disallowances as a result of these audits become a liability
of the fund that receives the grant.

The Town has entered into numerous construction and consulting contracts that were approved
prior to June 30, 2013, but have not been completed at June 30, 2013. As of June 30, 2013, the

Town had the following outstanding contracts:

Date Total Amount

Expended Amount

Outstanding Contract Issued of Contract  at 06/30/13 Outstanding
Breadloaf Construction 5/9/2013 § 24944 % - % 24944
Burlington Communications 4/1/2013 215,337 140,341 74,996
Green Mountain Communications 5/9/2013 214,990 - 214,990
New England Municipal Consultants (Reappraisal)  2/7/2011 179,260 134,729 44,531
New England Municipal Consultants (Assesor) 4/13/2012 49,920 23,040 26,880
Total amount of contracts $ 684,451 $298,110  $386,341

NOTE 9. PROPERTY TAXES

The Town is responsible for assessing and collecting property taxes for both the Town and Town
School District. Property taxes are assessed based on valuations as of April 1, annually.
Property taxes were due in two installments on August 13, 2012 and February 11, 2013. All late
payments after February 11 are subject to a 8% penalty, and interest is calculated at 1% per
month for the first three months and 1.5% per month for each month thereafter, for late payments
on either installment.

Town property tax revenue is recognized for the period for which the tax is levied to the extent
they result in current receivables, which will be collected within 60 days of the fiscal year end.

The tax rates for fiscal year 2012-2013 were as follows:

Residential  Non-residential

Municipal Tax $ 04689 $ 0.4689
State Education Tax 1.7529 1.4791

$ 22218 $ 1.9480
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NOTE 10. PENSION PLAN
Vermont Municipal Employee’s Retirement Plan

All eligible employees of the Town are enrolled for coverage by the Vermont Municipal
Employees’ Retirement System (VMERS) immediately upon employment. VMERS has a
defined benefit plan that the Town participates in as follows:

VMERS defined benefit plan (the Plan) is a cost sharing multiple-employer plan. Vermont State
statutes provide the authority under which benefit provisions and the obligation to contribute are
established. The Town and the employees make required contributions to the Plan based upon a
valuation report prepared by the Plan’s actoary.

There are four levels of contributions and benefits available in the defined benefit plans referred
to as Group A, Group B, Group C and Group D. The Town participates in Group B and Group C
of these defined benefit plans with an employee contribution of 4.5% and 9.25% of gross pay,
respectively and employer contributions of 5% and 6.5%, respectively. The defined contribution
plan referred to as Group DC and has an employee contribution of 5% and employer contribution
of 5.125%.

Of the Town’s total payroll of $1,238,636, $1,067,558 was covered under the Plans. The total
employer contributions to the Plans were $58,318 for fiscal year 2013, $50,413 for fiscal year
2012 and $48,875 for fiscal year 2011.

The Vermont State Treasurer reported that the VMERS Funded Ratio was 85.40% as of June 30,
2012.

The State of Vermont issues an audited Financial Report that includes financial statements and
required disclosures. This report may be obtained by writing the State Auditor of Accounts, 132
State Street, Montpelier, VT 05602.

NOTE 11. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to tort; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assels; errors and omissions; and injuries to employees. The Town maintains insurance
coverage from the Vermont League of Cities and Towns Property and Casualty Inter-municipal
Fund that covers each of those risks of loss. Management believes such coverage is sufficient to
preclude any significant uninsured losses to the Town. Settled claims have not exceeded this
coverage in any of the past three (3) fiscal years.

NOTE 12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Town has mainfained its primary bank account with Mascoma Savings Bank for many
years. The Town Treasurer is an employee of the bank.
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NOTE 13. INTER-FUND TRANSFERS

During the year inter-fund transfers occurred between funds. The various operating transfers
were made in accordance with budgetary authorizations. Inter-fund transfers for the year ended
June 30, 2013 are as follows:

Transfer From
Perpetual
General Care Cemetery
Fund Fund Fund Totals

Cemetery $ 15000 § 762 - § 15762
Affordable housing 45,000 - 45,000
Highway equipment 140,000 - - 140,000
Solid waste equipment 5,000 - - 5,000
Police station 2,500 - - 2,500
Police cruiser/special equipment 18,400 - - 18,400

o Town reappraisal 45,000 - - 45,000
E DPW Bridge Fund 35,000 - - 35,000
% General Admin. 5,000 - - 5,000
& Recreation - tennis courts 10,000 . - 10,000
a Communications study 25,000 - - 25,000
Buildings and grounds 5,000 - 5,000
Fire apparatus 62,000 - - 62,000
Paving 275,000 - - 275,000
Fire equipment 5,000 - - 5,000
Sale of lots fund - - 137 137
Sidewalk 15,000 - - 15,000

$ 707,900 3 762 $ 137 $ 708,799

NOTE 14.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 30, 2013, the Town received a bond issuance in the amount of $275,000 from the
Vermont Municipal Bond Bank for Bond Sale.

During the month of August 2013, the Town received a donation from the Virginia Close Trust
in the amount of $125,000 for the Norwich Conservation Commission.

Management has evaluated subsequent events throngh December 2, 2013, the date which the
financial statements were available to be issued.
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Grant receivable
Due from other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Capital lease payable

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Restricted
Assigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and
fund balances

TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE 1

JUNE 30, 2013
Total
Special Capital Nonmajor
Revenue Project Permanent  Governmental
Funds Funds Funds Funds
$ 27671 $ - $ 146,929 $ 174,600
- 177,424 - 177,424
203,847 807,548 4,450 1,015,845
$ 231,518 § 984,972 $ 151,379 $ 1,367,869
$ 296 $ 10,021 $ 539 $ 10,856
137 82,181  § - 82,318
433 92,202 539 93,174
126,326 892,770 150,840 1,169,936
104,759 - - 104,759
231,085 892,770 150,840 1,274,695
$ 231,518 $ 984,972 $ 151,379 $ 1,367,869
-36-
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TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE 2

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
Total
Special Capital Nonmajor
Revenue Project Permanent  Governmental
Funds Funds Funds Funds
REVENUES
Investment income $ 254§ 792 $ 765 $ 1,811
Donations 11,048 - 1,580 12,628
Grants - 286,303 - 286,303
Insurance claim - 131,879 - 131,879
Gain on sale of equipment - 1 - 1
Miscellaneous 560 - 1,800 2,360
Total revenues 11,862 418,975 4,145 434,982
EXPENDITURES
Program expenditures
General government - 97,838 - 97,838
Public works - 1,151 - 1,151
Public safety - 1,151 - 1,151
Recreation 3,535 23,000 - 26,535
Cemetery 21,077 - 539 21,616
Capital outlays - 849,131 - 849,131
Total expenditures 24,612 972,271 539 997,422
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (12,750) {553,296) 3,606 (562,440)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
~ Capital lease transaction - 125,000 - 125,000
Operating transfers in 60,762 647,900 137 708,799
Operating transfers out (137) - {762) (899)
Total other financing sources (uses) 60,625 772,900 {625) 832,900
Net change in fund balance 47,875 219,604 2,981 270,460
Fund balance, beginning of year 183,210 673,166 147,859 1,004,235
Fund balance, end of year $ 231,085 $ 892,770 $ 150,840 $ 1,274,695
-37-
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TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

SCHEDULE 3

JUNE 30,2013
Lapd Total
Conservalion Kids & A 1z Ciiizens Nommajor
Commission  Recreation  Cemetery Cops Housing Council Scholarship  Assistance  Special Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Fond Fund Fund Fund Fond Funds
ASBSETS
Cash ¥ - % - 82771 0§ - - - % - % - 8 27,671
Due from other funds 104,150 37,237 15,000 919 45,018 3.650 1,192 641 203,847
Todal assets 3 1001%0 § 37,237 § 42671 919§ 45018 3650 § 1192 % 641 8 231,518
LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable 5 - 3 - § 29 % = 8 C ] - 8§ - % 296
Darz to other funds - - 137 - - - - - 137
Total liabiliti s - 35 - %5 43 3 - 8 - - 3 - 3 - & 433
Fund Balances
Restricied - 31.237 42238 - 45,018 - 1092 a4l 126,326
Assigned 100,190 - - 219 - 3,650 - - 104,759
Total fund balances 100,150 37,257 42,238 919 45018 3650 1192 541 231,085
Total liabilities and
fund balances $ 100150  F 37237 % 42671 5 919 % 45018 3650 § 192 % 541 3 231,518
_38-
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SCHEDULE 4
TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
Land Total
Comservation Kids &  Affordable M R i Citizens Nonmajor
Commission Recreation  Cemetery Caops Housing Councit Scholarship  Assistance  Speclal Revenne
Fund Fund Fuad Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Foods
REVENUES
Investment inconme 5 % 36§ 84 3 1 L 18 5 4 3 1 g 2 g 254
Donations 100 4,666 5,050 - - - 1,125 7 1L48
Miscellaneous - - 360 - - = - - 560
Todal revenues 208 4,702 5694 1 18 4 1126 i 11,862
EXPENDITURES
Recreation - - - - - 495 583 2457 3,535
Cemetery - - 21877 - - - - - 21,077
Tatal expenditurcs - - 2077 - - 495 383 2457 24.612
Excass {deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 208 4702 (15383) 1 18 (491) 543 (2,348) {12,750)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (TISES)
Operaiing iransiers in - - 15,762 - 45,000 - - - 60,762
Operating transfirs out - - (1371 - - - - - (137
et chanpe in fund balance 208 4,702 247 1 45,18 (491) 543 (2,348) 47,875
Fund halance, beginning of year 99,082 32535 41,996 918 - 4,141 645 2983 183210
Fund budance, end of year § 100,190 § 37237 $42738 § 010 §45018 $ 3650 § 1,192 § 641 % 231,085
-39-
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TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2013
Pulice Craiser!
Highway Highway  Selid Waste Police Special Town Tracy General Recrention  Recreation
Equipment Garage Equipment Station i I Hall Admin Dam Teanis
_ Fusd =~ Pund = Wumd  Fewd  Fand  Fend  Mund Feod  Fwed  Feed _ Fond
ASSETS
Grant receivable 3 - 3 - % - 8 - 8 - % - % - % - % - 8 - 8
Due from other funds 131,941 28 800 14326 14423 64,257 46,331 51,015 1 13,368 6,084 94
Teal zsseds E 130041 3 23800 0§ 14325 8§ 14023 § 64257 %3 66331 $51015 % 1 $ 13368 5 J60R4  § o4
LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES
Liabilitics
Accounts payshle ¥ - 5 s 3 - % 1151 % - % - 3 - % - % - 8 - % -
Dnsc o other finds - - - - - - - - - - -
‘Total Linbilities - 1,151 - [ REN - - - - - - -
Fund Balances
Restricled 1311941 27748 14,326 12,372 61,257 66,331 51015 1 13,368 26,984
Total find halances 131,941 27748 14,326 12872 64,257 66,331 5015 1 13368 26,934
Taital liabilites amd
fnd balances 3 131541 § IRR9Y S 14328 3 14033 % 64257 _§ 66331 551015 3§ 1 3 13368 § 26984 % 54
- 40 -
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SCHEDULE 5

Total
Communicutivns  Tuwn Clerk ¥ire Vire Fire Long Term  Buildings Tower DFW Noomajor
Study Fguipment  Apparaias Station Fquipmeni  Sidewaslk  Facility and Grounds Paving  Comstroction  Bridge  Capital Project
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fuand Fuand Funds
H - § - 5 = & - 3% - 8 - 8 - 8 - 8 - B 6EMS  5H931  § 177424
40,398 7903 208 33,045 50,840 A6.428 10484 5,002 - - - 807,548
5 -mggs H 7993 & 208§ H!D:Iﬁ 3 ﬁgdﬂ SdﬁﬁZS H mgsa 5 00z 8 - B 6ROOS SWA399 5 984972
§ - % - % - 5 108§ 5 - % w8 - % - % i6M S5 - 8 10,021
- - - - - - - - 24,973 57,208 82,181
- - - 1,151 - - id = = 30,577 57,208 92,202
40,398 1995 202,018 31,895 30,040 46,428 9.520 5,002 - 37448 a2,1%1 892,770
40,398 1995 202,018 31,895 50,940 46,428 9,520 5,002 - 37448 52,191 892,774
3 40,358 i 7593 3 202018 5 35046 5 50040 546478 5 10484 5,002 3 gmj SIMEQ‘) 3 984,972
-41 -
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TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
Police Cruiser/
Highway Highway Solid Waste Police Special Town Tracy General  Recreation
Equipment Garage FEquipment Station Equi i Hall Admin Dam
Fund Mung Fund Tk Fund Funil Fund Fund Fund Fund
REVENUES
Equipment sales L3 - % - % - 5 - & - % - 3 - 5 - % - 5 -
Insurence proceeds - - - - 131,879 - - - - -
Grants - - - - - - - - - -
Investment Income a3 3 13 14 53 113 35 - 13 )
Total revenues 55 31 12 L 131,962 113 55 - 13 2%
EXPENDITURES
TProgram expenditures
CGeneral government - - - - - 96,874 - - - -
Public works - 1,151 - - - - - B - -
Public safety - - - 1,151 - . - - - -
Capital cutlays 19,042 - - - 127.336 - - - 2,000 -
Total expenditures 19,042 1,151 - 1,151 127,336 96,874 - - 2,000 -
Excess (deficiency} of revenues
over expenditvres (I8987) _ (1,120 B (1,13 4,626 (96,761} 55 - (1.987) i)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Capital lease ransacticn - - - - - - - - - =
Uperating transters in 140,000 - 5,000 2,500 18,400 45,000 - - 3,000 -
Totak other fnameing sousces {uses) 140,000 - 5,000 2,500 18 400 45 000 - - 5,000 -
et change in find halance L0 {1120 5,013 1,363 23,026 (51,761) 55 - 3,013 9
Fund balance, beginning of year 10,928 28868 9,313 11,509 41,251 118,092 50,960 1 10,358 26,055
Fund balme, end of year $131.041 537748 3 14308 £12672 % 64,257 & 66331 $SE015 8 1§ E3368 5 26984
- 42 -
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SCHEDULE 6

Tetal
Recreation Communications Tewn Clerk Fire Fire Fire Long Term  Buildings Tower W Nonmna jor
Tennis Study Equi Apporatus  Station  Eguip Sidewalk  Facility and Grownds Paving  Constraction  Bridge  Capital Project
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fupd Fuml Fumd Fund Fuond Funds
] - % - 5 I | 1 % - 5 - 5 3 - 8 - 3 - % - 3 - ¥ 1
- - - - - - - - - - - 131,878
- - - - - - - - - - 68,025 218278 286,303
2 3 B 199 36 32 40 11 2 - = 5 792
2 3t 2 206 36 52 40 11 2 - 68,025 218,283 418,575
- - - - - - - 964 - - - 97,838
- - - - - - - - - - - - 1,151
- - - - - - - - - - 1,151
- 4,800 - 26816 1151 L275 - - - 275000 USSSTT 236,034 849,131
13,000 4,800 = 26816 1,151 1,275 - put] - 275 040 155,577 236,134 $72.271
(22,998) (4.7685) .d (26.616) (1.115) [1.2423) 40 (953} 2 273,000 (87,352} (17.851y (553,296)
R R R N R R - . - 125,000 - 125,000
10,000 25,000 - 62,000 - 5,000 15,000 - 5000 275,0KK) - 35,000 547,500
161,000 25000 - 62,000 - 5.4H) 15,000 3,000 275,008 125,000 35,000 172,900
{12,958) 20,31 8 35,384 {1,115} 3m 15,040 (953} 5,002 - 37,448 17,149 219,604
15,002 20,167 7,985 166,634 300 47,163 31388 10473 - - - 35042 673,166
3 94 5 40398 § 7993 § 202018 SILE95  F 50940 $46438 5 9530 5 500§ - %5 37448 § 52,191 % BOLTHM
43 -
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SCHEDULE 7
TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR PERMANENT FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2013
Alurs &  Total
Perpetnal Sale of WCTU School/Gospel Main St.  Corridor  Nonmajor
Care Cemetery Fountain Leaseland Flags Tree Permanent
Fund Lots Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fuonds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalenis $ 120388 5 26541 $ - 8 - $ - § - 5 146920
Due from other funds - 137 1,070 1,075 1,938 230 4,450
Total assets § 120,388 § 26678 3 1,070 8 1075 $1,938 § 230 § 151379
LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable 3 - 3 - 8 - 8 - § 539 5 - b 539
Total liabilities - = - - 339 - 539
Fund Balances
Restricted § 120388 5 26678 8 1,070 8 L075 $1,399 § 230 § 150,840
Total liabilities and
fund balances § 120,388 3 26678 3 1,070 8 1,075 $1.938 § 230 § 151,379
- 44 -

1-94



SCHEDULE 8
TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR PERMANENT FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
Abura & Total
Perpetual Sale of WCTU School/'Gospel Main St. Corridor Nonmajor
Care Cemelery Fountain Leaseland Flags Tree Permanent
Fuml Lots Fund Fund Fand Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES
Lot sales $ 900 3 00 5 - 5 - L] - 5 - g 1,800
Tronations - - - - 1,580 - 1,380
Investment income 762 - 1 1 1 - 765
Total revenues 1,662 200 1 1 1,581 - 4.145
EXPENDITURES
Mainienznce - - - - 539 - 539
Total expenditures - - - - 539 bl 539
Excess of revenues over expendi 1,662 900 1 1 1,042 - 3,606
OTOER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in - 137 - - - - 137
Operating transfers out (762} - - - - - (762)
Total other financing sources (uses) (762) 137 - - - - (625}
Net change in find balance SO0 1,037 i i 1,042 - 2,081
Fund babance, beginning of year 115,488 25,641 [060 L L0T 357 230 147,859
Fund balance, end of year § 120388 5 26678 B 1670 0§ 1,075 § 13 § 230§ 150,840
-45 -
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Top Payees FY13

Blaktop, Inc. - Paving ... ... $638,850
Vermont State Treasurer - TaX ... .vvveinetnerneneennenn . 478,586
Blow & Cote - Bridge 41 Reconstruction. .................... 236,134
Blue Cross Blue Shield - Health insurance . .................. 208,588
Norwich Public Library .. ... 180,000
Burlington Communications - Tower Work. . ................. 140,340
VLCT PACIF - InSUTance « . v v v v et et e 122,431
NEMC - ASSESSOTS. « v v vttt e e et e e et et et e 118,500
VT Municipal Employees Retirement System ................. 109,381
Gateway Motors - Cruisers & FD Chief Car................... 99,024
Town of Hanover - Ambulance contract . ..................... 89,048
International Salt - Road deicer........... ... .. ... ... ...... 80,926
Twin State Sand & Gravel.......... ... o L. 79,882
Northeast Waste - Trash & Recycling ..................... .. 78,309
Evans Group - Gasoline & Diesel ........................... 66,814
US Bank - Tracy Hall, Tower Bond . ......................... 52,136
Greater Upper Valley Solid Waste Management Dist . ........... 45,683
Town of Hartford - Dispatch services. . ....................... 42,916
MHQ Municpal Vehicles - Cruiser upfit...................... 39,238
Green Mountain Power - Electricity. . .......... ... ...oo..... 34,401
Innovative Municipal Products - Dust Control . ................ 32,568
DuBois & King - Dam Consulting. .. ............oooo .. 21,813
Pike Industries - Gravel products . .. ....oovveeeeeee .. 24,945
Vermont Tennis Court Surfacing . ...........ovveiinneiinn.. 23,000
Windsor Co. Treasurer - COUNty taX « .« v v vvvvoeeeeenen..n 22,521
Northwoods Excavating - Bridge Repair ...................... 22,325
Nicom Coatings Corp - Cracksealing ........................ 22,000
Totally Trees - Tree removal ... ... 21,755
Slapstick Science - Circus Camp. . ..o evie e 21,546
Trving Energy - Heating oil . ... ... ..o 21,055
Ossipee Mountain Electronics, Inc - DPW Radios .............. 20,741
John Deere Financial - Grader payment. . ..................... 19,042
Michele George - Yoga instruction . . .............ccouuuna... 18,890
Unum Life Insurance Co.....ovvtne e 17,017
MVP Health Care, Inc - Health Insurance. .. .................. 16,438
Visiting Nurse Association & Hospice . ........... ... ... .. 15,600
American Rock Salt Co - Road deicer ........................ 15,114
Norwich Cemetery Commission . ...........oooiuueeennn.... 15,000
AM. Peisch & Co.-Audit. . ... 14,750
Delta Dental - Dental Insurance .............c.ooveinen.... 14,063
BWP Carquest - Auto & Truck parts. ..., .. 13,762
Webster & Donovan Excavating ...........coooviiieein. .. 13,390
Radio North - Cruiser radios ... ........coveiiieiea .. 13,108
Daniel S Clay - Snowplowing. . . ...t 12,905
Norwich Fire District - Hydrant rental, water .................. 12,900
Vermont Rec Surf & Fence - Guardrails . ..................... 12,413
L&M Service Contractors - Brook cleanout ................... 10,497
Advance Transit .. ...ttt 10,160
Hanover Ambulance Service . ..........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiaa... 9,592
Lyssa Papazian - Grant, Permit Consultant ..................... 9,578
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Bob and Fran Nye

Bob and Fran Nye, photographed in 2011 on her birthday, during the 250th celebration
of Norwich receiving its charter. The Nyes, who were both physicians and met in Medical
School, were married for 64 years. They came to Norwich in 1956 and lived in the center of
town, next to the Congregational Church, across from the school. They were also at the cen-
ter of whatever was happening in town, and their barn offered seasonal storage space for
local organizations.

Fran helped found the Marion Cross School library and volunteered there for over 50
years. Bob built some of the library shelves that are still in use today. They also worked for
the creation of the Dresden Interstate School District. Both had a strong sense of peace and
social justice, and their house was a sanctuary for many friends and contacts from the local
area and abroad (including Nicaragua, the Iona Community in Scotland). Bob died in

October 2012 and Fran in November 2013. Photo by Suzanne Wallis.
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The Fraser family of Dan and Whit’s were honored as 2013 People of the Year by the Norwich
Women’s Club at its Spring Gala. Photo courtesy of the Norwich Women’s Club.
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